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Financial Highlights
MBERE

B
BZ+t-A=+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Uss$’000 US$'000 Difference
FEn FE ER
Revenue Lhga) 327,821 325,627 0.7%
Gross profit E7 60,703 44,116 37.6%
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERA/ (BEB) 11,830 (2,928) 504%
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners WEARERR, (BE) 12,095 (2,434) 596.9%
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREARF, (BE) 0.79 US centsE 4L (0.16) US cents L
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FRESRA (ER) 0.79 US centsEfl  (0.16) US centsIL
Final dividend proposed per share B FR KRR S 0.301 US centsEAl - US centsA1l
Total dividends paid and B R#EIR
proposed per share BRREERH 0.476 US centsEAl - US cents3 Al
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Chairman’s Statement
TERES

Armed With Modern
Technology And Sound
Management, We Have
Successfully Created A
Number Of Quality Products
To Cater To The Consumers’
Tastes And Demands.

RE IR AR &

eI B FIFE ZiE
EBEEmM LNd&
HEBEROKRME K-

Yang, Tou-Hsiung #5358
Chairman £ JZ

Long-established in Asia, Vedan International (Holdings) BRAHERR (1A% BRR AR B IM - AR
Limited is a premier manufacturer of fermentation-based 4EFMEERER RANINDAAKE
amino acids, food additive and cassava starch-based products. B 58 E fh Y AN B £ E R o Ik B By
lts prominent reputation has been built on the quality KANEERE4AEEEMORBESR L -
manufacture of MSG, a key food additive lying at the heart of Mt EB R BRI EMN - TEHE
the unique tastes of Asia’s two billion consumers. The Group’s &R B DR (5 B E B i i7 o & B K 2R
vision of the future is simple: to expand and enrich its markets HYBE1Z : HE Kl N5 - R HE
across the Asian region while developing new products for the i AHEHEEN T K-

demand of consumers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

In 2015, the global economy was weak due to the low international
oil price which also had impact on the fluctuations in exchange rates
and interest rates. Other unstable factors including the change in
market sentiment in the PRC and the volatile geopolitical situation
in the Middle East and Europe again added uncertainty to the
improving economic and market atmosphere. Consumers became
more cautious, which ultimately affected the Group’s business
growth during the period. However, the new energy supply system
at the Vietnam factory was completed as scheduled at the beginning
of this year, and material costs remained quite stable during the year,
while the production cost gradually stabilised which facilitated higher
profitability. Nevertheless, the intense price competition in the MSG
market has shown no signs of abating, which affected not only the
Group’s major markets but also its overall profitability. To cope with
this situation, the Group has switched its focus to business expansion
through strengthening sales efforts and product development with
the ultimate aim to boost profit.

Looking at the Group's operations and financial performance for the
year of 2015, turnover amounted to about US$327,000,000 during
the period, which was similar to the level recorded last year. Although
the competitiveness of the Group’s production operations has
improved, and the overall sales volume have recorded growth in most
of the regions and products, the Group’s revenue has only increased
slightly mainly due to the price competition among competitors as
well as the depreciation of the Japanese yen. These factors have
dragged down the market selling price and thus considerably affected
the Group’s business. Nevertheless, the Group’s gross profit for
the year grew substantially by 37.6% from the corresponding year
to US$60,703,000 as the production cost at the Vietnam factory
decreased due to more efficient energy utilisation. Net profit of the
Group achieved a turnaround and increased by US$14,758,000 to
US$11,830,000. Net profit margin was 3.6%.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREESE

In terms of geographic markets and segment performance, in
Vietnam, the economy was on the road to recovery and the sales
of various products of the Group including MSG, hydrochloric acid,
soda and maltose recorded an increase due to the lower energy costs
and enhanced competitiveness of the Vietnam plant. Thus, overall
performance of this region grew by 3.0% year-on-year. Regarding
the operation in the PRC, due to the slowdown in economic growth,
depreciation of the RMB, along with the weakening market demand
and intense competition, sales of MSG and starch products were
under pressure. However, the PRC market still recorded a year-on-
year revenue growth of approximately 1.9%, thanks to the business
growth of the newly-launched trading product mix. On the other
hand, sales in Japan were affected by the tough price competition
among industry players, together with the weak Japanese economy
and the significant depreciation of the Japanese yen, thus the selling
price of all products declined. Consequently, the sales performance
in Japan decreased by 14.4% from the same period last year. The
ASEAN and European markets experienced an even more adverse
situation due to the cut-throat price competition among peers during
the period. Thus, the prices of our products, in particular MSG and
starch products, in these two markets have remained very low. The
Group has resisted engaging in competition based solely on price,
as profitability remains its key consideration. As such, our sales of
MSG and starch in these two regions were notably affected and sales
results in these regions contracted significantly when compared to
last year. However, sales of MSG in the US market benefited from the
imposition of an anti-dumping tax on products from the PRC. As a
result, the revenue from the US saw a notable growth.

As for the performance of our products, the Group’s leading product,
MSG, has boasted higher competitiveness as the Group has managed
to gradually lower its energy costs since the beginning of the year.
Consequently, both revenue and profit from this major product have
increased when compared to the corresponding period last year.
The sales of modified starch, another key product of the Group,
decreased by 10.6% due to the keen product competition in Thailand
and a slowdown in demand and reduction in sales of products with
low profit margins by the Group during the year. The performance
of hydrochloric acid and soda under the specialty chemicals segment
recorded stable growth when compared with last year, which was
attributable to greater demand from the infrastructure sector in the
Vietnam market. Sales of fertiliser and feed products decreased by
about 9.3% year-on-year as market competition became increasingly
intense due to price reductions in these products caused by
decreasing market demand reinforced by lower short-term demand in
the market. Moreover, thanks to the growing demand and increased
sales of amylase in Vietnam, turnover of the Group’s new maltose
plant soared by 47.8% year-on-year. The new plant has not only
served as another revenue growth driver, but has also enhanced the
production efficiency of its existing syrup plant and diversified the
Group's starch business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

The Vietnam plant has completed the construction of the new energy
supply system in the first half of 2015. As the more efficient system
has improved cost structure, the Group has managed to achieve
a turnaround and gradually gained growth momentum. However,
threats arising from the current intense price competition among its
peers have continued to grow while overall economic uncertainties
linger in the operating environment. To cope with these challenges,
the Group will review its strategies and mechanism from time to time
by adopting a more flexible raw material procurement procedure as
well as improving the production technologies, so as to stabilise the
costs and enhance competitiveness of its production. The Vietnam
government has also entered into a number of free trade agreements
including the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement. Such initiatives are
expected to boost the medium- to long-term economic growth.

In the area of sales and marketing, the Group will expand the local
Vietnam market and focus on emerging markets with development
potential as well as strengthen its distribution channels. To support
the current product lines, the Group will integrate its marketing
strategies and expand its sales channels in order to realise the full
potential of its sales network while enhancing its sales presence
to boost brand awareness. As for the PRC operation, in addition
to re-strengthening its business development team, the Group will
continue to expand regional markets and develop new products with
higher gross profit. The Group will also review and identify potential
acquisitions and strategic collaborative projects, and by leveraging its
geographical reach and international experience, aiming to improve
efficiency while broadening its revenue streams. The Group is also
continuing to bolster its research and development (R&D) capabilities
to boost production efficiency and develop innovative products.
These efforts will help the Group extend the life cycle of its products
and enhance its brand presence.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREESE

We realise that the prevailing uncertain global economic conditions
and operating environment will present many growth opportunities
but also tough challenges to the Group’s operations. Facing these
variables, the Group is conducting in-depth review and planning, as
well as formulating related strategies to capture the opportunities
and overcome the challenges ahead. Looking ahead to 2016, the
Group believes that the competitiveness of our production operations
has improved. This plus an open market in Vietnam and the current
stable economic growth in the region have enhanced the confidence
of the operation team in promoting sales and further expanding into
different business sectors. As the Group enters a benign phase of
the business cycle, it has observed positive signs of an upswing as
its operation develops and advances. Recognising the ever-changing
operating environment, the opportunities presented to the Company
as well as the responsibilities it shoulders, the management at all
levels will execute the operational strategies set by the Group in
a proactive, pragmatic and prudent manner. In this way, acting in
concert our colleagues will advance the Group’s business to greater
heights as well as generate more fruitful returns for shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2015, the global economy remained sluggish amid weak
industrial production, trading activities and market demand.
Moreover, emerging economies did not perform any better. The
US interest rate hike, together with decreasing international
oil prices and material prices have created structural economic
issues. Governments and central banks have supported
economic growth through further quantitative easing and
facilitated consumer spending through depreciation. However,
these measures have heightened the uncertainties and risks
in global economies. During the year, while the PRC recorded
a 6.9% growth in GDP, it was the lowest expansion in 25
years. The slowing economy in the PRC, together with its
government’s policies to reduce production capacity and
inventory, as well as to deleverage, have added pressure to the
global economy which has already suffered from continuous
deflation. On the contrary, the economy of Vietnam was
booming during the year with GDP growth of 6.7%, its highest
in 5 years. Following the decrease of bulk commodity and
energy prices, inflation rate remained at a historical low of
0.6%. Further opening its economy, Vietnam has joined several
regional economic organisations, and signed a number of
Free Trade Agreements (FTA), which can boost foreign direct
investment (FDI). Meanwhile, export trade brought about by FDI
has recorded growth for years, thus creating considerable trade
surplus, and helping to stabilise the Vietnam Dong exchange
rate to the US dollar. Low inflation, high economic growth
and increasing consumer spending also benefited the market
demand of Vietnam.

During the year under review, while revenue only increased
slightly by 0.7% to US$327,821,000, but gross profit surged
around 37.6% to US$60,703,000, with gross profit margin
up from 13.5% to 18.5%. The Group also recorded a net
profit after tax of US$11,830,000, compared to a loss of
US$2,928,000 last year, and net profit margin also grew from
-0.9% to 3.6%. The profit growth was attributable to: 1)
Alternative energy solutions as investment in a cogeneration
factory of Vedan Vietnam in 2014 started to bear fruit since
March 2015. 2) The Group strategically extended its supply
chain and diversified its sources in light of lower international
material prices, and stabilised and reduced the material costs
accordingly. 3) The efforts to improve production efficiency
have started to yield results as well.

Reviewing the Group’s business in 2015, markets in Vietnam
and the US recorded growth but in Japan the market notably
receded. Benefitting from a recovering local economy, and with
the enhanced competitiveness of the Vietnam factory, sales of
both MSG, and fertiliser and feed products reported growth in
Vietnam market. As anti-dumping duties were imposed in the
US during the year, the sales of MSG from Vietnam to the US
market have recorded notable growth. In terms of product, in
contrast to the improvement in MSG, other products, except for
modified starch, generally remained at a similar level to 2014.
Sales of modified starch dropped because the Group focused
on the strategy of maintaining profitability to boost product
margin and re-integrated its product strategies. Such procedure
would drag down revenue in the short-term, but can benefit
long-term development and revenue of this series.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

2.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market

= BRSW

(=) WEHETH

Consumer spending in Japan remained low in 2015.
The implementation of large-scale quantitative
easing monetary policy by the Japanese Central
Bank has caused the Japanese yen to depreciate to
its lowest level in 12 years and increased the cost of
imports. Plus, due to the competition from the PRC
and Indonesian players, selling prices faced pressure
and were forced down. Therefore, revenue from
the Japan market was US$64,176,000, 14.4% or
US$10,809,000 lower than 2014, and its proportion
to the Group's total revenue down from 23.0% to
19.6%.

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2015 2014 Difference
—Z-EF “E-|mF =R

Amount % Amount % Amount %

Area & &8 % &8 % 28 %
Vietnam i 169,527 51.7% 164,619 50.6% 4,908 3.0%
Japan AAK 64,176 19.6% 74,985 23.0% -10,809 -14.4%
PRC e 34,480 10.5% 33,842 10.4% 638 1.9%
ASEAN countries R 28,992 8.8% 29,787 9.1% -795 -2.7%
Other regions Hi 30,646 9.4% 22,394 6.9% 8,252 36.8%
Total At 327,821 100.0% 325,627 100.0% 2,194 0.7%

1 Vietnam 1 MRS
As local demand gradually recovered, revenue in HMRBEMmERRETIE
Vietnam market grew by 3.0%, or US$4,908,000 BT -—RAFHEER
from 2014 to approximately 169,527,000 in 2015. #9169,527,000& T 'tk =
Revenue from the principal products such as MSG/ T —FEHEMN3.0%H & 5
GA only grew around 2%, or US$2,369,000, due to 4,908,000k Lo X EE m M
the lower energy costs in the Vietnam factory and RiE /S BEYERERT
low-price competition from imported products in BT B Z AN - % 1) E B
the market. The revenue of new maltose products EOEMMEERT 28R
rose around 31.0%, or US$1,345,000. Revenue of BT NFEEL2%KE
other products such as starch products and fertiliser %62,369,000E T M IEH
and feed products slightly increased. Due to the BERRBLR L AFE
steady growth of demand, revenue of hydrochloric h04931.0%% & %8 1,345,000
acid and soda remained at a similar level to 2014, EL-ETERMARD AR
although selling prices were lower. The contribution £ R W BE A5 1 Hn - 0 BB R
from the Vietnam market of the Group's total BFITEFB KIS EEMm $EE
revenue rose from 50.6% to0 51.7%. TR EXERF_Z—N
K o R 5 A MG e B
50.6% EF+5I51.7% °
2 Japan 2 =N

AAR-—_Z—RAFEREHEEK
ER&KTIR - BARITHAE
RAEEBERBEREA
B EZ12FRHK - &k E
Ak AR 32 0 - B3 b0 b A B8 K )
BRENRT SETEEZX
RAARM TR ALt £EE
A AT 2 &1k64,176,0003
L RZZE—NFR14.4%
84 %810,809,0003 7T 15 &
E2KH23.0%EE19.6% °
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

3

The PRC

In 2015, the PRC's economy was affected by
overcapacity from peers and the lower-than-
expected growth of domestic consumption.
Therefore, sales of the principal products including
MSG, starch and fertilisers declined slightly. In
addition to further strengthening PRC market by
increasing marketing efforts, the Group was also
actively engaged in new product development
during the year, which included investment as
selling agent of products produced outside of the
Group, as well as investment and strategic planning
of new marketing direction. Hence, revenue of this
market grew by 1.9% overall, or US$638,000, to
US$34,480,000, and the proportion to the Group’s
total revenue increased from 10.4% to 10.5%.

ASEAN member countries

During the year, revenue from ASEAN member
countries, excluding Vietnam, reached
US$28,992,000, some 2.7% or US$795,000 lower
than 2014. Its contribution to the Group's total
revenue dropped from 9.1% to 8.8%. The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to the continuous tough
price competition in MSG market, and the Group's
strategy to reduce the sales of lower margin
modified starch. Sales of other products, on the
other hand, remained at a similar level as in 2014.

Other regions

The anti-dumping duties imposed by Europe and
the US on MSG in recent years have led to a change
in the Group’s sales proportion of MSG to the
US. During the year, the Group’s MSG exported
to Europe and the US recorded notable growth in
revenue, so revenue from European market and
other regions grew by 36.8% or US$8,252,000 to
US$30,646,000, compared to US$22,394,000 in
2014. The contribution from other regions to the
Group’s total revenue was enlarged to 9.4% from
6.9%.
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2.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

= BESW(R)

(2) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) EmSBEEIN
Unit : US$'000 B FET
2015 2014 Difference
—E-1F —T-mF =R
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Products BHHE &8 % &8 % 28 %
MSG/GA KK/ AEE 230,344 70.3% 225,153 69.1% 5,191 23%
Modified starch/ SHRN,/

Native starch KRB 38,628 11.8% 43,220 13.3% -4,592 -10.6%
Specialty chemicals FLEM 22,557 6.9% 22,566 6.9% -9 0.0%
Fertiliser and feed EREHER

products 19,782 6.0% 21,809 6.7% -2,027 -9.3%
Others HitEm 16,510 5.0% 12,879 4.0% 3,631 28.2%
Total FEpes 327,821 100.0% 325,627 100.0% 2,194 0.7%

1 MSG and GA 1 Kig A&
During the year, the revenue of MSG and GA HAKBENAQRE K
reached US$230,344,000, 2.3% or US$5,191,000 230,344,000 . & - &
higher than 2014. Its proportion of the Group's — U FEIN2.3%k & 58
total revenue rose from 69.1% to 70.3% mainly 5,191,000% 7T * (h & B A Z IR
contributed by the sales to the US which increased 69 1% E703% T EZ
relatively significantly during the year, while Japan's EEEBAIMNEEBEBERAR
market reported a weaker demand as a result of the Em - BERAARTSEER
slowing economy. o BRI BTN

2 Modified starch/Native starch 2 EBURH KRB

The Group's starch (both modified starch and native
starch) recorded a revenue of US$38,628,000 in
2015, which was 10.6% or US$4,592,000 lower
than 2014. It showed the biggest degree of decline
in terms of contribution to total revenue, declining
from 13.3% to 11.8%. The obvious decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the weak demand
for modified starch in the market and keener
competition. The Group has reduced the sales
proportion of lower margin modified starch during
2015, and will gradually increase the sales of higher
added value modified starch.

SERBRH (ZFHERSD X
RABH) T —HFLWE
38,628,000k T kL - &
— T EFERAD10.6%k & 58
4,592,000% 7T AEBEHRA
BRI BELZ2ER HEE
@I HR13.3%BFE11.8% °
ERRIBRDEBRALENZ
FWHEEE RN ERKERK
g mEME RERR D H
ERFEEEBRMD M -E£H
KA &5 IR T8 & M hn{E
ERSEERDEEEERZ
tbE -
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

3

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products

Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are principally sold in the Vietnam
market. In 2015, the market price of soda dropped
but the Group's sales increased, thus the revenue
remained similar to 2014 level. The revenue of
specialty chemical products occupied 6.9% of the
Group's total revenue, and reached US$22,557,000.

As for fertilisers, since the prices of major
agricultural products fell around the world
with subsequent lower demand for fertilisers,
selling prices of fertilisers dropped in various
regions. Revenue from these products reached
US$19,782,000 during the year, 9.3% or
US$2,027,000 less than in 2014. The contribution
of fertilisers to the Group's total revenue slid from
6.7% 10 6.0%.

Other products

Revenue of other products was US$16,510,000
during the year, 28.2% or US$3,631,000 more than
US$12,879,000 in 2014. The contribution to the
Group's total revenue rose from 4.0% to 5.0%. Of
which, the best performer was maltose products,
which recorded a revenue of US$6,738,000,
thanks to the significant growth in sales in 2015
which led to an increase of revenue by 47.8% or
US$2,179,000 from US$4,559,000 in 2014.
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3. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW = FERE REFRER
(1) Cassava (=) K&

In recent years, the cassava plantation area in Vietnam
has remained stable, covering around 550,000 hectares.
In Vietnam, cassava and cassava-related products ranked
fourth nationally in terms of export volume, immediately
behind coffee, rice and cashew nuts. In 2015, the
Ministry of Finance of Vietnam has raised export taxes
on cassava from zero to 5% at the beginning of the
year, and then lowered the export taxes back to zero
at the end of the year. Consequently, its export volume
increased notably at the end of the year with export
value reaching around US$1.5 billion in total. The PRC
was the largest import destination, accounting for
89% of the total. On the other hand, to guarantee
the supply of bio-fuel within Vietnam and effectively
control domestic consumption and sales of cassava, the
responsible authority suggested a new tax regulation on
cassava export tax in 2016, which is believed to affect
the domestic and overseas sales and selling price of
cassava. During the year, the average procurement cost of
cassava by the factories in Vietnam dropped slightly when
compared to that of 2014.

Molasses

The plantation area in Vietnam in 2014/2015 covers
around 300,000 hectares. Sugar cane production in
Vietnam is expected to reach 19,900,000 tonnes. Sugar
production decreased by 10.8% to around 1,420,000
tonnes. Sugar inventory was around 390,000 tonnes and
there was still an oversupply. However, as the demand
for molasses continued to grow steadily, the price of
molasses increased slightly in 2015. As there was also
an oversupply in the global sugar cane market, the price
of raw sugar also declined, which helped to reduce the
production cost of the Group.

EAFR BEAZBEEEELNE
T HISSEATE B ARZ AR S
mESEEERE OEHELEN.
ERAMBE AKMER - —F—H
FHRBPEUARZTHOBRETH
BOFYRMENLTEB EHAE5%
FREXBATHAR BFELOEFKE
ANig - 2F P OBEENISEET
HAZEANEOR  589% « Hh-
IRFB WA EYRE R4
BAEBEARZEEMEE  HEEE
PIRE T —ANFERELOEHRT
M ERE  BEHERZINRN  HME
EREE - HRNBEBRARE FIIRE
B T —VIFEE B

ot aF B

=

W TN —E-hFESE
HEEEH0ERQE 2l HHEER
HR3E19908 M - IES 14281
BA10.8% - HEE T #I39F WA - ) 4
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3. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(3)

Energy

With the continuous advancement in exploitation
technology for shale oil and gas in the US, global crude
oil exploitation volume has continued to rise. However,
the weak global consumer demand has dragged down
the oil price, which eventually led to the decline in
the price of coal and natural gas. In Vietnam factory,
the alternative energy solution in cogeneration factory
was in operation starting in March 2015, which helped
reduce the production cost of the Group. Meanwhile, the
Vietnam factories have also actively promoted the use
of biomass energy such as rice blocks and wood for part
of the production which offered higher flexibility in the
Group's operations.

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, due to the increase in net
profit and the reduction in capital expenditure and
inventory during the year, the Group had cash and
bank deposits of US$63,520,000, which was 40.5% or
US$18,317,000 higher than that in late 2014. Short-
term bank borrowings decreased by US$15,744,000 or
around 40.5% to US$23,113,000 as compared to that in
late 2014, while middle-to-long-term bank borrowings
declined by 12.5% or US$4,083,000 to US$28,613,000.
Total bank borrowings decreased by 27.7% or
US$19,827,000 to US$51,726,000. The borrowings were
mainly denominated in US dollars, which accounted for
98.4% of the total, with 1.5% denominated in New
Taiwan dollars and the remaining 0.1% denominated
in RMB. The proportions of short-term and medium-
to-long-term bank borrowings were 44.7% and 55.3%
respectively. Net interest expenses rose by about
Us$70,000.

Trade receivables were US$29,863,000, representing
an increase of US$3,882,000 or around 14.9% when
compared with late 2014. Around 89.8% of the trade
receivables were due within 30 days. As at 31 December
2015, total inventory was US$80,037,000, down by
US$24,738,000 or around 23.6% when compared with
that in late 2014, mainly attributable to the decline in
inventories of bulk materials and finished products.
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4.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As the borrowings decreased during the year, gearing
ratio (total borrowings to total capital ratio) was 18.9%,
which was lower than 26.8% at the end of 2014. Due
to the cash exceeding borrowings, the net gearing ratio
(total borrowings less cash and deposits to total capital
ratio) changed from 9.9% at the end of 2014 to -4.3%.
As current liabilities declined substantially in 2015, the
current ratio rose to 3.8 during the year from 2.7 as at
the end of 2014. The financial position of the Group has
remained sound.

Capital expenditure

In 2015, capital expenditure amounted to approximately
US$13,296,000, US$48,086,000 less than the capital
expenditure of US$61,382,000 in 2014.

Exchange rate

Recovery of the US economy and the interest rate hike
by the US Federal Reserve led to the upward trend
of the US dollar. As a result, the currency of different
countries to the US dollar depreciated in 2015 and the
Vietnam Dong was also slightly affected. On 6 January
2015, The Central Bank of Vietnam announced the first
depreciation of the benchmark exchange rate of the
Vietnam Dong to the US dollar by 1% to VND21,458
to US$1 within 2015. In May 2015, the Central Bank of
Vietnam announced a further 1% downward adjustment
to the benchmark exchange to VND21,673 to US$1.
Through the depreciation, the Central Bank of Vietnam
has aimed to stimulate exports and alleviate the pressure
of slower economic growth. In August 2015, the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) allowed the RMB to depreciate.
In light of this development, Vietnam decided on a 1%
adjustment to the exchange rate of the US dollar to
Vietnam Dong, which depreciated from VND21,673 to
US$1 to VND21,890 to US$1 and expanded the allowable
range of movement in that exchange rate to within plus
or minus 3%. Thus, the Vietnam Dong depreciated three
times within a year by about 3%.
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4.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(3) Exchange rate (continued)

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly for
domestic distribution and the transactions there are
denominated in RMB. In mid-August, 2015, the PRC's
decision of allowing the RMB to depreciate more than
3% resulted in the largest trading band of RMB seen
since 1994 within just two days. In 2015, the median
exchange rate of the RMB depreciated by a total of 6%.
In 2015, the extent of the depreciation of the Vietnam
Dong was relatively stable when compared to the Asian
countries where the Group’s key markets are found. More
than 42% of the revenue of the Vietnam factories was in
US dollars, so the potential exchange risk was relatively
low.

(4) Dividends
Basic earnings per share for the period under review were
0.79 US cents. The Board has resolved to declare the
payment of a final dividend of 0.301 US cents per share.
The dividend payout ratio was 60%.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, in face of global deflation, weak market
demand, excess production capacity and supply, it is expected
that the price competition within the industry will continue,
creating uncertainty for the Group’s operations.

Nevertheless, the Group has reinforced its corporate structure,
introduced alternative energy solutions and enhanced
marketing and business development efforts in recent years.
Despite facing numerous uncertainties in the future, the Group
will continue to adhere to its development strategies and adopt
measures to ensure such strategies are well-implemented,
including:

- Product lines will be restructured to raise the proportion
of high value-added products. The number of low gross
profit items will be reduced to maintain the reasonable
profitability of products.

- New products will be developed as the Group seeks
out new markets. We will increase the number of new
agents and customers, and establish a mutually beneficial
mechanism and channel of communications, which will
further reinforce the business development of the Group.
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5. PROSPECTS (continued)

strengthen the procurement of critical bulk materials
in order to reduce wastage and enhance production
efficiency.

Develop customised production techniques and enhance
the production scale of new products by utilising the
Group's resources, collaborating with different industries
and conducting regular evaluations. More products from
third parties will be introduced to fulfill customers’ needs
in a segmented market and bolster niche markets.

Based on the strategy of co-opetition, the production
base in Vietnam will be used to develop markets in
ASEAN and TPP nations. This complementary relationship
can develop relevant businesses with value.

By strengthening its financial management, the Group
can enhance efficiency and maximise the utilization rate
of assets. Steps will also be taken to mitigate the risk
of exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations amidst
turbulent financial markets.

Management will adopt a flexible approach in adapting a
rapidly changing business environment. Apart from maintaining
basic operations, the Group will also devote more efforts to
formulating strategies for new environments. In the coming
year, we will continue to prudently implement strategies, and
we remain cautiously optimistic about the Group’s performance
next year.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAAWEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 73, the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung
Min Der Commercial Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
has approximately 53 years’ working experience in the MSG industry
and is one of the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is responsible for formulating our overall corporate
strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino
Acid Manufacturers Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 61, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
YANG, Cheng had approximately 40 years’ working experience in the
MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our
business development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King
International Limited. Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman
of Vedan Culture and Education Foundation, one of the advisers
to the Taichung City Government, the commissioner of Industrial
Development and Investment Promotion Committee of Taichung City,
Executive director of New Taiyuan Urban Development Association
and the supervisor of Taichung Culture & Education Foundation. Mr.
YANG, Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in
the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 58, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
Group's operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang is also the Chairman of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 29 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 52, an Executive Director and a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and also the President of Dan Lian Biotechnology
Corporation. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 19 years’
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 56, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Chou had approximately 34 years’ working experience in the food,
beverage and consumer products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is
a director and Vice President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Chou also holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28
June 2006.
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EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 62, a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan
Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting
and statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 38 years’ experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 55, a Non-executive Director. Mr. CHOU is
the Supervisor of Taiwan Vedan. Mr. CHOU is also a Supervisor of
Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the director and legal
consultant of Wincome Incorporation and he has over 23 years of
experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU obtained his Bachelor of
Law degree from Soochow University, Master of Law degree from
East China University of Political Science and Law and Doctorate of
Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 54, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also
a director of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui
Industrial Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013). Mr. CHAO
has approximately 23 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 55, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. KO graduated
with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia University,
Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science Degree
in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr. KO has
been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO is also
the Independent Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology
Co.,Ltd. (an emerging-stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation), Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and Jourdeness
Group Limited. Mr. KO is currently a director of Taichung Season Arts
Education Foundation, Taiwan.
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EX SAEEERQAAWEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 56, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State
University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan
University. Mr. CHEN is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing
Research and Investment Corporation. He has more than 28 years
of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice
Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Group on 28 December 2012. Mr. HSIEH obtained a master degree
in management from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan and
obtained a doctor degree in business management from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is presently the President of
Commerce Development Research Institute and a professor of the
Business Administration Department of University of Chung Yuan
Christian University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is also the independent
director of Y.C.C. PARTS MFG. CO. LTD. (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and the representative of
legal entity as director of First Commercial Bank, the member of
remuneration committee of Long Bon International Co., Ltd (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). He
was the supervisor of Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 23 years’ working experience in the business
management, strategic management and technology management
field.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 66, our Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Strategy Officer of Vedan Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the
National Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance.
Mr. HSIEH is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. HSIEH has approximately 37 years of finance management
and banking experience. Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial
institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam including International Bank
of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr. HSIEH was also a general
manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh City Branch. Prior to joining
us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in Gia Hen International Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 50, our Deputy Chief Financial Officer and the
Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the finance
functions of the Group. Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon,
major in finance and marketing, and holds a master degree in
business administration from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined
Vedan Group in 1993, and was the vice manager of business and
foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special assistant to the
chairman, project manager of finance department of Taiwan Vedan
as well as the manager of the Group’s Taiwan branch. Mr. NI has full
qualification in finance, marketing and executive administration, and
has accumulated approximately 23 years of working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 52, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 26 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 65, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company’'s amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 28 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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EX SAEEERQAAWE[EIN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 54, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company's
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 25 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 53, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 27 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 48, is now Acting General Manager of the
Group in Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-
Ren School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 20 years’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.
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EX SAEEERQAAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 42, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 15 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 40, has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company from 1 April 2012. Ms. WONG is currently
a senior manager of the corporate services division of Tricor Services
Limited (“Tricor”). Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. WONG worked for Ernst
& Young and Tengis Limited in Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is a chartered
secretary and an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Ms. WONG has over 17 years of experience.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRER®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by Mr. YANG, Tou-
Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is
responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2015, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED"”) and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board
considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board and its deliberations.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed

under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 28.
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TREARSE

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board's primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year and the
Directors’ attendance is shown in the table on page 35. The NED and
INEDs may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-
Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, all Independent
Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. CHAOQO, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his
valuable experience in reviewing financial statements and evaluating
significant control and financial issues of the Group who among
themselves posses a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession, commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAOQ Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 30
to the accounts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates of
directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would consider
a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and
industry experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
gender and other characteristics.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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T
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS fEERREE
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the ZTHE&8 HRET (b %k asral) 'Rl X
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. D.3. 11§ Fir &k & B gk
The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies EHEERTAQTMNOEEAMELTHR EF
and practices, training and continuous professional development BREBEABNEIIRFEZTERRE ~2A
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and EETEAREMEERT BT (LTETAEZES
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, #TEAXSNIEESA) ([ G2E<PE) )
the compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by K (B EBAX$55]) A REST (EEASTH])
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) and Written Employee  RARMEEARENHBER T HANBE LT
Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and  #%°
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
MEETINGS ATTENDANCE Bl EREs
Attendance/Number of Meeting
HEE/EERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination ~ Annual General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EZg BHZES ¥MzE8 RZZEE RRBAEXE
Executive Directors BiTES
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GEIE(LE) 414 NAT B NATEF 10 0
YANG, Cheng BIE 1/4 NAZ & N/ATE A NATE A 0/
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CEO) i (83 44 NATER NATE R NATE R n
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 N/AZ i A N/ATE N/ATE B 0/1
YANG, Kun-Chou il 3/4 NAT /AT /AT 8 0/1
Non-executive Directors FUTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung ARR 4/4 N/ATE A 1 NATE R 0
CHOU, Szu-Cheng BBE 44 NIATR R NARER NARER o/
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong HER 44 0 71 " "
KO, Jim-Chen ffEs 4/4 12 n 01 0/1
CHEN, Joen-Ray B 44 " 71 " 0/
HSIEH, Lung-Fa HER 3/4 212 N/AT N/ATE B 0/1
Notes: B 5
1. Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the 1. BEEEREGBAREERERE=ZRES
voting right on the first and third board meeting. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou BEBITERRE -GN EEREGIRER
authorized Mr. YANG Kun-Hsiang to exercise the voting right on the first ERE-REETGRITHERARE-FEEL
board meeting. Mr. HSIEH, Lung-fa authorized Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong to ERBRBEREERE - NESEERTER
exercise the voting right on the first board meeting. RIE o
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to the company secretary.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Save and except for code provision E.1.2 as set out below, the
Company has complied with the provisions of the CG Code during
the reporting period:

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting and should
also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees to attend. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr. KO.
Jim-Chen, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee were not able
to attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 19
May 2015 due to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for
a specific term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung
and Mr. CHAOQ, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and
Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and
Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$305,000 and
US$30,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The Statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 55.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Directors conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. HSIEH,
Jau-Hwang, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionst(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

(with attention to the Board of Directors)
Fax: (852) 2528 3158
Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the CG Code
introduced by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface

For fair review of the Group’s business, the description about major
risks and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this Report.

Subsequent events after year end date
Except those disclosed in this Annual Report (if any), no major event
that influences business operation of the Group has occurred since
31 December 2015 (the balance sheet date of the financial year
under review) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 9
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.
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In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labor safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4.  Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6.  Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.
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Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group's regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group's
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2015 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 58.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.301
US cents per share, totalling US$4,580,000 (2014: nil) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be paid in cash on or before 15 June 2016 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 31 May 2016.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December, 2015, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 36 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2015.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group purchased
less than 30% of its goods and services from its 5 largest suppliers
and sold less than 30% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers. None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 3,838 employees,
3,593 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 229 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 16 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group's
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group's competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HSIEH, Lung-Fa

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, Mr. HSIEH, Lung-
Fa and Mr. KO, Jim-Chen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 31.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN EFNERO HFEBROREEECESSN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES wRE

(@) As at 31 December, 2015, the interests of Directors of the (a) WZZE—RFE+_A=+—0 A A=
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of ERARANEEAERER (EERH
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the F M EGEOIEXVED) 2 ik Hh - ABE R G5
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance RERERHEEG 2ERIOT: —
(the “SFO"), were as follows:—

Interests in shares

Rz

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares HARATE BT
H®E 56 LZEREE R BE DL
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
RS E controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)
REESZ bz #ES (P EETR3)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIER A controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)
REESZ bz #ES (P EE25%3)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
EREKE EmEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%
HIF R fE EmEAA
Notes: FfsE -
1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 1. BEEREBETFERIEHTFEKing

more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited International Limited ([King International | )

B=H 2 —HRRE-BREEERMEIER
7 King Internationali# % 2 169,730,196 % A~ A
AR R A s o

("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise 2. BIE e E B EITE ST HITT{E King International
BR=DZ —HRAE-BELXEAMBERAE
A King Internationali% % 2 169,730,196 % &~ A

ARty R A R

of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the

169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in 3.
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

BERLE S A MG IE ST A AT 2169,730,196f%
B 5 RS TH R R — #LAR 5 o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been
granted such rights.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2015.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 31 May 2015.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.
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Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April, 2015.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2015.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three year commencing on 26 December
2015.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

REAEEECRARBTZREHE A -F
—HFOA-BRER RH=F -WELER
REIFTR R E S A E A RER (RIE0R
i E ) Je i By 2K A BT LA 3 T 16 5E S AR 75 163 o
FHERE—F - WARARMNELELTRELER
T8 BIBRE B S 10 IR TS o 2 R B (EHASRAE
MEREREY (RIFEAME) EREL L -RE
EREHA WEEZREAERER TR
HEH-EAEEBEMTIALIL-

REmALECHARRTLIRBHH A _-F
—HFMOA-BRER RH=F RELER
REIFTRRE E S A E A RER (RIE0R
€ ) Je i By 2 2 BT LA 3 T 160 5E 5 AR 75 13 o
FHERE—F - WARARRELELTRELER
T8 BIBRE B S 10 IR TS o 2 R B (EHASRAE
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December, 2015, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BF T 9 R
MEERAARTEFHAIRARRINEER
MEESHE ZRFALRSENBBRITER
BEREMEL BENERXTERMBRER
RWpmARL BA WE BK BEREX
AERREMIILZEMEBE  ERARERETIT
HEAMBEEHFXTHEFHANER -

TEAEY
BREEEFI M REE KN ARRRF AL E
BERENAL  ARSEABBITZEMAL
ERREERNRNAMEMEBNBEE D HAEM
ER2H-

ERACEROERAR ([EEBKRA]) 2XSH

BE-Z-—RAF+-A=1+—HILtFE KXRQF
HEFDRRERBEALTEERAETTIR
P MEZERSBRALT FMBAEI4AZH
WEANEREZHBERERS  ARANEIRE
THRNEUAENERIEH B AR E:

Note Us$'000
B 7 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A MHEEKNHEEER (i) 6,729
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEKMSLZNM (ii) 2,216

Taiwan Vedan

R S
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Notes:

)

(i)

The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),
MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
7 November 2014, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2017 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$50,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ending 31 December 2017. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.

US$6,729,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$50,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 November 2014.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 7 November 2014, the Company and
Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision of
such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2017. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's future business
developments.

US$2,216,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 November 2014.
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 48 to 50 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2015, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERFERBMzEGRNKE

BARRMM RZE—HAF+-A=+—H"
BEXFEBEARRESEHZITHRABNE
@I A TATRARBBRM P HEEREES R
HEIGRPIEXVERSE2 KR 35 3 2 SRR A R
R EN LD HIARRRIREEZ KB K
263361 MFE 2 B oM A -

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares EEARE
=B 514 ZEREAE BITROB AL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
EnlEA A (Note 1)
(HsET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
(“Taiwan Vedan") corporation
R EROERLDR ([AEKS]) REZEH ¥ ER
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
ERMAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
ERMAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
ERMAA
Notes: P &
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion Power B & ERK K2 EMBRR - A

R FH %48 A A % 2 mBillion Powerfi#A 2
512,082,512/% f& 10 & # 2 ©

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512

shares held by Billion Power.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2015, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group's business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-  AREREEFZ  KAARIBIIFNTEELE
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would T ZE@FEMBAAET 2 £ ML EE
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the l/‘/(ﬁﬁ% (B BE)AEEZERRINELTE
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in NBERMRATEE WHEEZWL-

respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the

basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of

Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR % B

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who  ABRE B HE T KBS FTRIEFAEZ
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ZIZEREm SR ERTHERERE T
By Order of the Board AEESH

YANG, Kun-Hsiang IR ke

Director and Chief Executive Officer EERTHAES

29 March 2016 —E-R"F=ZRZTNH
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
set out on pages 56 to 141, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

54  vedan International (Holdings) Limited Tk BB ($25%) R A T




Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 AR

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

= A =
mEEEAER
B .
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2015 2014
—E-HF T
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B2 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Land use rights T Hb {5 A A 6 2,544 2,767
Property, plant and equipment Y- WEREE 7 156,603 167,220
Intangible assets B EE 8 9,177 9,822
Long-term loan and receivables REE R & EWEIE 13 70 165
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZEE 10 3,365 3,393
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 171,759 183,367
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 12 80,037 104,775
Trade receivables BUE 5 ERR 13 29,863 25,981
Amount due from JE Uk — fE BT /B 2 /)
the non-controlling FEERRE 2 FUIA
interest of a subsidiary 879 933
Amount due from an associate JEM—EEE AR ZHIBE 34(d) = 123
Short-term loan to an associate By —REBERRZ
RAEIE X 10, 34(d) 120 -
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < I8 K E Aty fE Y A 13 10,451 14,986
Amount due from a related party JEl— BB AL
FKIE 34(d) - 1,146
Restricted cash 2R H R 14(b) = 4,249
Short-term bank deposits MHEIRITE R 14(a) 19,330 3,463
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 14(a) 44,190 37,491
184,870 193,147
Disposal group held for sale BEFEHARZEE 15 - 1,926
Total current assets RBEEH#E 184,870 195,073
Total assets EEHE 356,629 378,440
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners EAREEAELER
of the Company
Share capital A& A 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves 1 17 260,390 253,901
275,618 269,129
Non-controlling interest e IR R A (2,168) (2,030)
Total equity B 273,450 267,099
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AL =
meEEEAER
. - .
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-NE
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 19 28,613 32,696
Deferred income tax liabilities RIESHAaRE 20 4,178 4,772
Retirement benefit obligations BRIREHEMT 29 1,230 1,214
Total non-current liabilities kRBEELTE 34,021 38,682
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JETE SRR 18 10,686 14,546
Accruals and other payables FEET 2 A R E Ath FE A 3R 18 13,548 18,331
Amounts due to related parties BN —BEMEALTRIE  34(d) 946 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 23,113 38,857
Current income tax liabilities ENERFT S B E 865 925
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 49,158 72,659
Total liabilities =RiE R 83,179 111,341
Total equity and liabilities EEREELARH 356,629 378,440

The notes on pages 62 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 56 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2016 and were
signed on its behalf.

N E2EV1MT AN M E T BKARS M RERNO—3 D -

HRFESCRIMNBEZHBRMEER - RFA -+ NBEEFeERTHTIALRRES -

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
LRV gk

Director Director

BE BE
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Consolidated Income Statement

meEWlEE
Year ended 31 December 2015 HEZE—T—HF+_A=+—HIFE
R .
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-ZA=+—-BLEE
2015 2014
—E—8F —E—E
Note us$‘000 Us$'000
[ik=2 FTET FET
Revenue Wz 21 327,821 325,627
Cost of sales $HE KA 23 (267,118) (281,511)
Gross profit EAX 60,703 44,116
Other (losses)/gains — net Hih (E1B) M —
R 22 (1,786) 870
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX 23 (20,737) (22,627)
Administrative expenses THHZ 23 (21,937) (23,491)
Operating profit/(loss) BERA, () 16,243 (1,132)
Finance income BB A 799 643
Finance costs B B (1,136) (910)
Finance costs — net B S ) — F 5 24 (337) (267)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate B — [ & R A
MR 1% s 18 10 (28) (97)
Profit/(loss) before income tax MRETESBATRER
(E51]|) 15,878 (1,496)
Income tax expense Fri5 15 25 (4,048) (1,432)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERN(FHE) 11,830 (2,928)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LUT&AEEZR,
(&18) :
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 12,095 (2,434)
Non-controlling interest eI A (265) (494)
11,830 (2,928)
Earnings per share for profit/(loss) EATEEAREER
attributable to the owners of the B (BB 2
Company during the year (expressed HRER (USKRE
in US cents per share) Al 51 7R )
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXERN
(B]) 27 0.79 (0.16)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SERBHERER
(B18) 27 0.79 (0.16)

The notes on pages 62 to 141 are an integral part of these HNFEE2E141ENKENBEREAMBHRELD
consolidated financial statements. — &7
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mETHWER
VYear ended 31 December 2015 HEZZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-ZA=+—-HBLEE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERHN, (FE) 11,830 (2,928)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2EBA (FE) :
ltem that may be reclassified to AIEHHEEREE 2AEE
profit or loss
Currency translation differences VEH =58 (2,789) (285)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEERFEHEMEE
for the year, net of tax WA (EE) (2,789) (285)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEEEEWRA(BER)BHE
for the year 9,041 (3,213)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) DNTE&AFEEEAEERZE
for the year attributable to: WA (R B
— Owners of the Company A YNEIEZ PN 9,159 (2,715)
— Non-controlling interest —FEIE AR (118) (498)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) TEEZEWBRA(FR)EE
for the year 9,041 (3,213)

The notes on pages 62 to 141 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

—#5

HRF2E141 ANMEEIBAER G M IRKR K
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBER

VYear ended 31 December 2015 HEZZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
B -

Attributable to owners of the Company

AL EDN
Non-
Share Share Exchange Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
B R EE B AHRE REBF ax  FERER BLEE

US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us$'000
TET TEL TEL e TEL e TEL TER

Balance at 1 January 2014 RoE-MmE-A-B7H4 15,28 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (2,434) (2,434) (494) (2,928)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EER
Currency translation differences ERER - - (281) - - (281) (4 (285)
Total comprehensive loss 2AFBAE - - (281) - (2,434) (2,715) (498) (3,213)
Total transactions with owners BREEACBRSE
Changes in ownership interests DEEHNEHELD  MERR)

in a subsidiary without change of BENERES (MF35)

control (Note 35) - - (61) - - (61) 216 155
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZB-OF+=f=1-H

&8 15,228 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 269,129 (2,030 267,099
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-RE-A-BzEH 15,228 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 269,129 (2,030 267,099
Comprehensive income ES:LON
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 12,095 12,095 (265) 11,830
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERER - - (2,936) - - (2,936) 147 (2,789)
Total comprehensive income 2ARAEE - - (2,936) - 12,095 9,159 (118) 9,041
Total transactions with owners BEBAZARSH
Dividends paid (Note 26) BR&RE (F326) - - - - (2,670) (2,670) (20) (2,690)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZB-AF+ZA=t-H
it 15,228 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 275,618 (2,168) 273,450

The notes on pages 62 to 141 are an integral part of these BE(RFE62E141EH MM FETIRBKRLA S T HEIREMA
consolidated financial statements. —&oe
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERITRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—OF
Note US$°000 Us$'000
P 5E FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBHEERE
Cash generated from operations XBEEAZES 31 58,174 36,092
Interest paid EAFE (1,269) (910)
Income taxes paid [RENPEIEEY ! (4,669) (2,042)
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZ
activities REFHE 52,236 33,140
Cash flows from investing activities REFZBZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE-
equipment M5 K& 7 (13,012) (61,138)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME HE R
plant and equipment X2 TS ROR 31 23 12
Proceeds from disposal of assets HEBELEZ
held for sale BEZEHRIA 15 2,386 -
Purchases of intangible assets BEENVEE 8 (151) (25)
Purchases of land use rights BB T AR 6 - (219)
Increase in short bank deposits R AR 1T A7 FRIE 0 14(a) (15,867) (450)
Decrease in restricted cash SRR IR 2 A 14(b) 4,249 15
(Increase)/decrease in short-term loan to % T — B Z R E 2
an associate RAEIE K (M)
SR (120) 96
Decrease in amount due from JE—HBE R Az
an associate RIER 123 -
Interest received 2 F & 799 643
Net cash used in investing activities REFSMACHEFE (21,570) (61,066)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Dividends paid BB 26 (2,670) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMSHRIEA 73,236 158,496
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (93,063) (132,102)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (A EL
financing activities 2R FE (22,497) 26,394
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBESESEYEM
cash equivalents (RD) F8 8,169 (1,532)
Cash and cash equivalents RETNZE SR
at beginning of year ReEEY 14(a) 37,491 39,496
Exchange losses on cash and RekBeEEBY2
cash equivalents (R R (1,470) (160)
Cash transferred to disposal group EREFIELE
held for sale HEARZRE - (313)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at end of year REEEY 14(a) 44,190 37,491

The notes on pages 62 to 141 are an integral part of these #HREE2E141 BN EEREAMBHREN
consolidated financial statements. — &5
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2015, but have not
had any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans:
(Amendment) Employee Contributions

Annual Annual Improvements
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
Project

Annual Annual Improvements
Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
Project

2

RHEERTFERRFEE (1))

2.1

mAEEE (H)

(a)

ARBEBHN —F—HF—
A—BRZERABZHBEFERE
BRERTIHMEL 2ER
B Z B BEXEEFEA Y
BRRZMBEELETAERY
o

BRGER EEBME S -

£19% EEH®
(Z2——%)
SEHES!
FEYH#TE —Z-ZF%
—E-CZF
BEEE
py§:3
FEIGERE —E——F%
“E-=F
BECFE
U
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREBERFERHBREE (W)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b) The following new standards, interpretation and by ATREEMBEWIFN_FT
amendments to standards have been issued, but are —hE—-A— ARG ZWERE
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 EAER - B EIBRIERAN 2 3
January 2015 and have not been early adopted. LR BERERZEE] -

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BB 2 &BES
ZEHBEEXR

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
—E-_HFE_T-NFBEMzFERE —_ZE-—RF-HA—H
Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

TR ITA —ET-NF—-H—H
Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined

Annual Improvements Project
FEUCEF B

HKFRS 9
FRM GRS ER LR
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
BEEMBMEEEI0RRL REFEABREQAANESELE FEEE
R ERE285 ZENEELESTE

(BFTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Consolidation Exception

BBV EERIE105% KREBR ERGHBR —E-RE—-HA—H
T B E LR 125 R
BB G L5285
CCHEN

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations

1 January 2016

BBV EERE5R WEAEEBER 2 GtRE —E-RF-A—H
(EFTE)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016

BBV EERIE 1455 EEIRIERE —ET-RF¥—-HA—H

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

BB EERIE 155 REEPAEH W —E-NF—-HA—H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

B B
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFETHRREE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued) 21 HEEE(E)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) (b) (&)
(b)  (continued)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RT5 B2 %%
ZEFHEEEN
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
BEGETERE 1R w2 —E-RE—-HA—H
CEHEN)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1 January 2016
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
BEEGTERE 165 KR BB ITEREHEAE —E-RE—HA—H
R LR E385
SEHEN)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
(Amendments)
BAGHENE 165 & RE-HENEY —E-RF—HA—H
BEE G ERELR
CEHEN)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
BB G ERE275R ER B R e d E —E-RE—-HA—H
(E7TAK)
The Group has already commenced an assessment REE B e TN o &R -
of the impact of adopting the above new standards, BRRENERI B2 HE - AEE N
interpretations and amendments to standards. The Group REBEEHEOSAEE 2 @5 K
is not yet in a position to state whether substantial KRB HREZ 2 AFREBEKX
changes to the Group's accounting policies and financial 2o
statements presentation will result.
(¢ New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) () FBEBATEN CEHIF6225)
In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and UEoh - IRIBFT BB R RED CEHIE
Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 622F)  NEIGHIZEIE [IRE &
(Cap. 622) come into operation during the financial IR ERRARAROVRFEE
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and e At SRAE M BHRERE TERY
disclosures of certain information in the consolidated 2 RBEEHEMRE -
financial statements.
Annual Report 2015 £3§ 65




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

B I
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTITETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

22 MIBAFA
221 44

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

MEBARAASREHERFS
EHENER (BREBETE
B) MAEEAAENESR
SEE R 2 A # O AR N
N ARREREHZERZ
BANTZEARERE  AY
ERGFEEtIE-HWBARA
HEHEETASEE R
FEAR XTRERBRLEE

ceases. AiFLéRA ABRe

(@) Business combinations (a) EBAH
The Group applies the acquisition method REBERAWEESTH
to account for business combinations. The ¥Baft-WEHRER
consideration transferred for the acquisition AMEERRERMEE
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the BE - WWRETAHEAR
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to EMEEBERAEE
the former owners of the acquiree and the FResrT IR AR E A F
equity interests issued by the Group. The B-FMEEREDLFENR
consideration transferred includes the fair ARELBEEE N EMA
value of any asset or liability resulting from EESEBENATE.
a contingent consideration arrangement. R EE T & OF BF BT MBS B9
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and AR B E R AES

contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair

BERIKARAE NF
BIWEB WA FER

values at the acquisition date. go
The Group recognises any non-controlling AEBRFEWREEE
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- RN EE 7 2 [

by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

FEFE R M A o A U
HZIFERES MBI
REE®E BETHA
AENARBEREER
LBl o3k B BEFEE - Th
VAN P {E 3 30 B A
PRI BE 7 AT BRI B E
FECER S EIRL G
DIEZ B AT E - R IE
BAMBREERRE
EREMFEEE §
A P B E At SF 1 M 25
BB 19 AR R Wi B

Mz AFEFZ-
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as W B AB B X AR T EE AR TR
incurred. T4y o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

2

RREERFESHBREE (W)

22 MEAF (F)
22146 (#)

(a)

EBEs (&)

(OESS V=N PEPNi- 1= S
7 RIBE T BEME
Z AR UL R 7w 0 WK
BZREE §EHMat
EZHERNKRBREHZA
FE EOUHEFRAE
EEzWaNEIENE
AR o

AL R ERX
AREREANKEE R
ZRFEER BB
—HEEHABZHAR
RENERHRZAF
B2 HIERELE
EHERIE39R 2T
REBRETERBRERS
Hitzmkm s 8-
DERED ZRARE
BAEHE  MER
REENEEAK-

BEAE RKRBAIE
IR I i 25 & 7R M8
ERTR R T R
WiE BBz R ERB
PR AR BRI FEER
FEZBIERBEA
BReRMEEAE CRR
2B S REEE
ZBEFF RS 2 BN
1A 35 8 B h P U BB
MEBAREEFEZA
FYE AHEREERRE
Wk &R PR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’'s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains —
net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 15-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks, brand name and licence

Separately acquired trademarks, the brand name
and the licence, which have finite useful lives,
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost
of trademarks, brand name and licence over their
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M E R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale when its
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale is considered highly probable. It is stated at lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial
assets, which are classified held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts that
are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise trade and other
receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash equivalents
(Note 2.13), amount due from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, long-term loan and
receivables, short-term bank deposits and short-
term loan to an associate in the balance sheet.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

—
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 B EE (&)
2.10.2 R R ZE

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the income
statement within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERKE

I B
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFETHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued) 210 MK EE (#)
2.10.4 Impairment (continued) 2.10.4 518 (#)
For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss HERKEWRREMS B8
is measured as the difference between the asset's TR TYAR IR & 2E BRI {E B R B
carrying amount and the present value of estimated BEERBEERMNERFR 2 MET
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that RRBeR(ABEEDREE
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial ZARREGERBER)REEZE
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying EHit2 - BEZREETNAH
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of B MEEeEAELRe lE
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income RER - WERBFHNE -
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the ArEAERREBEZITREA
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss REFEESAERNE-
is the current effective interest rate determined ERFIITZHZE AEBER
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the BRAABMETESEZIA
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an N EFHERE-
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the MEEEAMREBEESEE
impairment loss decreases and the decrease Rk 20+ sk 2 AT 2 8 4 B 22
can be related objectively to an event occurring EHRBMEEREE S (0
after the impairment was recognised (such as an MEBAZERTRE N
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the Z) RIZAEBEERZBES
reversal of the previously recognised impairment B RGERERAREE -
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
2.11 Inventories 211 BE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEUKAS A EHRFEMENR
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted KB ARR o BORIR AR R E -
average method. The cost of finished goods and work- BB mAE R MR BIERME B
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other BAL HEERKANEEEES
direct costs and related production overheads (based on B(AEBERTHE) BIEE
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. BEBR 2R FEREFTNES
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the HEERREBRANEETHEER
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling TE
expenses.
Consumables are included within inventories and stated HEmET AT E R - WIR T IEE
at cost, using the weighted average method. FTEARKARTIER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M E R

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax

0]

(if)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the income statement in employee
benefit expense, except where included in the cost
of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in
the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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e M BERME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B E R

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21

2.22

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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mEMBERKE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERKE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0]

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong against US$.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations, which the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2015, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit/(loss) for the year would have
been US$1,552,000 (2014: US$834,000)
lower/higher (2014: higher/lower), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.
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e M BERME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(continued)
The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit/(loss) for the year would have
been US$10,000 (2014: US$316,000) lower/
higher (2014: higher/lower), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from the
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, short-term
loan to an associate and other receivables.
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e M BERME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary, short-term loan
to an associate and other receivables included in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 14 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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mEMBERKE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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mEMBERKE

B
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBRER (E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEERBEE (&)
(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) (c) HmBELERE (&)
The table below analyses the Group's financial THRBREEBZ S 45 H
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on A TSN ER %8
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the B ABEBEIAANETS
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed M- REBFBEEZ2HERA
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash HARFHRREME °
flows.
Group AEHE
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-fR —-5EZ@ME WEERLF BRERE Bt
Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000

TEL TET TET TEL TEL

At 31 December 2015 RZZ—1F

+=ZA=+-8”
Bank borrowings (Note) BITHE (M) 24,160 8,325 21,112 1,040 54,637
Trade payables ERE SRR 10,686 - - - 10,686
Other payables and EfEARER
accruals B A 5,505 - - - 5,505
Amounts due to related ‘Tﬁﬂﬁ/\im
parties 946 - - - 946

At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF

+ZA=+—H

Bank borrowings (Note) BITHE (M) 40,276 9,268 22,017 3,612 75,173
Trade payables ERE SRR 14,546 - - - 14,546
Other payables and Ef A RIER

accruals EtER 11,298 - - - 11,298
Note: B 3T
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings ﬁ AERPEEEE S AR
up to their respective maturities. TEEERNZFE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 RERBEER (1)
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEXEBER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to REEERESZHERRERE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going B BB S EEELE 2880 A
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders AR RO R R AHEAMBRESE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an ABERFE A RERFE B BN
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. D Ak < W N N
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BT HSIABRERNERE  KAEET
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to BEARENTREZKRESRE MR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new REEER BITHRMILEEE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. LA B (F 7 o
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HMERNEMAR—& AEBENEE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This BENEREEERENR ZHL XK
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by BEEAEBBRM TN ZERITEE
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance MR AR E - BB BEHE
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings TREBEERTBEE-
and current borrowings.
During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged RZZE-—RF AFBEZKEHE_-ZT
from 2014, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. —POFERMNEBE R — ?5( TR AE
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were EBBELREREEKFE - RZ2F—H
as follows: FRZZ—NE+_A=+—HZ
BEBGBLEENT:
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—EB-RE —ZT—uF
us$’'000 Us$'000
TEx FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) BIRITIEE (H5E19) 51,726 71,553
Owners’ equity (including non- WA AR (B A
controlling interest in equity) M2 IR R ) 273,450 267,099
Gearing ratio BEARLE 19% 27%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment

Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations and valuations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

3

MERBER (§)

3.3 AFEME
ERFEWCE 5 8RR E At U R IR
LA Ko B B 5 R 5K N LA JE A ROR
BREAEE  AEERTEREER
MERER AN FERS - BIREM
BEXUMBEERBBEZRFE TR
AEBRES /T AR R TSF
EFBARKANB R REMME -

EES AR RAER

ET R A E e TENRRE L &5 M E R
FETHE BRESBATHERS
ZARKREMIER

AEBEEHARRIEH G REE-REE
EE HLESHZEMEAHEE D EARH
ERFRESR - TXFE®EBRKERHET
—MRFEFERNEERABZREEFLE
R PALR I E

(a) PEEHMGERE
AEBESFHRBME28MANE
ARENRE  AABRERES HER
B MRERR e BT IRE SRR
ARREREENE FEBRTH
Z R A R HE (FIGE8) -

(b) ¥ BMERRENMGERE

BERLEMHNENBEBETRAIE
BRRERAEER  ARRKEHY
% BB MRk (BHRE7) fEHURE RT
fE-ME BERRBZATREEHE
RREMEEAEDEMETE - %5
FHE R EF EEH A KA
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group's entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgment.

94  vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRE (3258) BRA T

a4

EEE A RAE (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

NE BERERBNELEENER
£
AEENERES2EAEEAREMR
RAZFEEBRBRREEN @M
FHEMBEEME  BERREM
B\ EEMGE A ERF LA
FrEREHAS - BRAMET T AMEL
HERINGENTE - BE R RENE
WEENBERERFHNEL LR
RERE B A EAFHEBE G
Fl ERESHBNENBEHEFAX -
BERQEFH e R A EAF
HBMAR - EMER T ERA(E
REREREENITER#HRA
SR EH -

EMMEHRIELERS
AEBEBGHTE - Bk BNm
B - NHEE 2R SHBIR B B
SR NEBAFELEAHE - FF
ZRGRFAEHHNBEETERRK
BB ER - AEBABARKES
BUANERIIME IR - 1L T e 5B Y T A
BEREHEZAT MZEEEIRK
MG HERENARZ ZBTE - %
FERNBTEVNBECHNZES
REREMEHEENREE-

fid & 22 B AR A R SR FE AR TR & N AT
EHHERUEZRERHBEBRA T
PR AeRREE TEREES
REMZELRMEREERHAE
B MBS RER S 2 AETR
EFREZReUARMGTLRE
HERNECHBEERMERAX
ZHERBR T E -

EEE ¥
FEEZEBZYRERCKRE
ZERKEMEZIZRERAEE
FoERBAAEERERIZEELAR
RARSZRE -BERHERNA
B o




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B E R

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's policies and information for the purposes of assessing
performance. The Group presents its operating segment results
(below), based on the information reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker, and used to make strategic decisions.
This information includes segment revenue, segment capital
expenditure, segment assets, segment non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets and
segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditure, segment assets, segment non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets and
segment liabilities are based on the geographical location of the
assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$45,453,000 (2014:
US$51,608,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment.

(a) Segment revenue

SEEE
TEEERRECHEREBINTES
EERHUASBE ZHRMERNUTZE
R AEBEREBETIBLERKEMEHL
ARBIEREREZEMZFEENAE
BIRTX) - IFEHMBRDESRE D
MEAZH - DHMEE DEWMIERBEE
(EMTARBRLEMSHEERIN) KA
BfE-

IBEERAREIBNHEBEONEE
Bo AEED B2 ME R - 2 BUER A
EPMAMRE D D HMEAH 5 &
BE DHIRBDEE(ZMITARERL
FIEMEERN Ry BB ERNEES
BEMEME S -

ITREERREIERESWE D BAE
EzWEREREEFERR -Eib o
MRRERNKEZER -

W2 497545,453,000€ 0 (—ZE— N
% 151,608,000 ) BRERAZE—
IBEF - 2TEWERE®RE REaBE D

BB

2015 2014

—E-HF —T-F

Us$’000 Us$'000

FErx FET

Vietnam M 169,527 164,619

The PRC A 34,480 33,842

Japan AR 64,176 74,985

Taiwan =N 12,765 14,947
ASEAN member countries REBKE

(other than Vietnam) (TEEME) 28,992 29,787

Other regions H b = 17,881 7,447

327,821 325,627
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEE(E)
(a) Segment revenue (continued) (a) DIz (E)
2015 2014
—E-Af —Eomg
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FErx FET
MSG/GA RiE ARk 230,344 225,153
Modified starch/Native starch BB, RNBR 38,628 43,220
Specialty chemicals FRLEm 22,557 22,566
Fertiliser and feed products HE &7 4 2 19,782 21,809
Others EHith 16,510 12,879
327,821 325,627
(b) Capital expenditure (b) EBEAXZH
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mEF
Us$’000 us$'000
SFEEE FET
Vietnam 5 13,145 60,565
The PRC H 151 817
13,296 61,382

Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on
where the assets are located.

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets.
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e M B E R

. - .
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEHE (8)
() Assets () EE
2015 2014
—E-RE —E U4
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam A 298,634 318,456
The PRC s 45,608 53,586
Hong Kong B 10,784 5,591
Taiwan =0 1,511 724
Singapore 3 n 92 83
Total assets per consolidated MEEEBER
balance sheet FIRBEE 356,629 378,440

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where
the assets are located.

Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the
management at the operating segment level. The
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation,

MEEDRBEEMGELMOKS

&5

ME BEMIEHEEERZED
ME@MER - UATRELEN BN
MEBEE#E WE RE FAEHR

X MELBERREEOE -

impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense
and share of loss from an associate for each operating

segment.

Amortisation Share of
and Income tax loss from
depreciation Impairment expense an associate
1k B
BHERTE o R FiEpmEx NEEE
Uss$'000 US$'000 UsS$'000 US$'000
F=7T F=7T FE T FEx

2015 “E-%F
Vietnam i) 19,615 1,790 3,989 28
The PRC & 1,527 - 12 -
Others Hi - - 47 -
21,142 1,790 4,048 28

2014 —E-mF
Vietnam 2= 19,241 - 1,238 97
The PRC H 2,334 - 194 -
21,575 - 1,432 97
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B
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEE(E)
(d) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments, (d) BRUBEIZFFRBEE (SRMIA

by location: BRIM) -
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mEF
Us$'000 Us$'000
EET FET
Vietnam 5 146,704 152,019
The PRC A 21,620 24,195
Hong Kong BE - 3,595
Total #BEt 168,324 179,809

(e) Liabilities (e) BfE
2015 2014
—E—8F —E-NEF
Us$'000 Us$'000
SFESm FET
Vietnam JisAE) 69,951 92,353
The PRC i 3,880 8,424
Hong Kong B 7,689 5,352
Taiwan =N 1,613 5,167
Singapore 303 46 45
Total liabilities per consolidated FEEEBRBEX

balance sheet FIRBERE 83,179 111,341
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B
6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TihfEAHE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBER L FERAEZERIELERN 2
operating lease payments and their net book values are FBRRIE HEREFESITOT:
analysed as follows:
2015 2014
—E—8F —E-NEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
At 1 January w—A—H 2,767 2,624
Additions NE - 219
Amortisation of land use rights (Notes 23) = 315 F 42 4 $
(KF3E23) (66) (66)
Exchange differences N =5 (157) (10)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2,544 2,767
In respect of the Group's land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods MAEEZ T EAEMES NP
Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Maotai”), Shandong Vedan Snowflake g s MBAREMRKARRBRAR
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"), ([EFIRA])  IWERR N FIER LBRT
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have each CEERAT(IEERANESEES
been granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority BERETABMATFMN T HERAE  »
for 50 years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively. MR-ZZEMN—_F —FTRARFRZZERT

FlEim e
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B
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BERIH
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
ERIR ¥  BERES RE BOERE At
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TERT TET TER TER TR
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZ-WF-A-8
Cost 2% 3,642 109,771 407,356 8,851 31,359 560,979
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (63,865) (322,456) (6,701) (29,452) (422,474)
Accumulated impairment ZEAE - (2,628) (9,147) - 22 (11,797)
Net book amount REFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE-Z-M%
+ZA=t-BLFE
Opening net book amount FONEEFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
Additions NE 60,132 47 258 554 147 61,138
Transfer HE (3,005) 769 2,170 - 66 -
Disposals (Note 31) e (HiE31) - (97) (216) (13) - (326)
Depreciation (Notes 23) & (HisE23) - (4,932) (14,083) (494) (666) (20,175)
Transfer to disposal group held for sale E&Z#H{EHE 2 HEMT
(Note 15) (H#3%15) (13) (29) - - - (42)
Exchange differences EXZE 3) (375) 295 2 (2) (83)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
At 31 December 2014 R=ZE-MF+=A=1+-A
Cost 2% 60,753 110,414 409,469 9,263 30,404 620,303
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (69,119) (336,123) (7,064) (28,952) (441,258)
Accumulated impairment ZERE - (2,634) (9,169) - 22 (11,825)
Net book amount REFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ-Z-1%
+=A=+t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOEEFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
Additions RE 11,722 4 762 420 199 13,145
Transfer HiE (68,401) 10,377 57,081 609 334 -
Disposals (Note 31) e (FiE31) - (111) (341) (28) (17) (497)
Depreciation (Notes 23) & (Mi23) - (4,490) (15,313) (517) (438) (20,758)
Impairment (Note 22) A (Hfi22) - - (1,790) - - (1,790)
Exchange differences ERESE - (471) (198) (30) (18) (717)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
At 31 December 2015 R-E-AF+=A=1+-H
Cost %S 4,074 117,874 439,366 9,119 19,439 589,872
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (72,766) (330,113) (6,466) (17,927) (427,272)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - (1,100) (4,875) - (22) (5,997)
Net book amount R FE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Certain items of property, plant and equipment of the Group
are pledged as security for the Group's current and non-current
bank borrowings as follows:

ME -WERRM ()
AEBEETHE BFEERED THEM
ERASEM A RIFANMRITIEE 2K
o ST

2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPEoT FET
Net book amount of pledged property, EEMYE - BE R
plant and equipment (Note 19) BREFE (MFFE19) = 7,557

Depreciation expense of US$19,418,000 (2014:
US$17,400,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$305,000
(2014: US$367,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$1,035,000 (2014: US$2,408,000) in administrative
expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$133,000 (2014: US$449,000) on qualifying
assets.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment of US$1,790,000
(2014 nil) related to the Group's Ha Tinh plant which is located
in central-northern part of Vietnam, has been charged in other
losses — net (Note 22). The impairment was due to the under-
utilisation of the production capacity as a result of the lack of
supply of raw materials for production.

For the purpose of the impairment review of Ha Tinh plant, the
recoverable amount of the related assets are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. The key assumptions
used for value-in-use calculations include gross margin of 9%-
18%, sales price growth rate of 0% to 7%, and discount rate
of 10%.

The budgeted gross margin was determined by management
based on past performance and its expectations for market
developments. The annual discount rate is before tax and
reflects the specific risks relating the relevant segment.
Judgement is required to determine key factors adopted
in cashflow projections. The impairment test is sensitive to
changes in assumptions; consequently, any adverse change in
key assumptions would, in isolation, cause further impairment
loss to be recognised.

HFrER 19,418,000% T ( =& — 4
17,400,0003 jT) + 305,000kt (=&
— P04 :367,000% 7T ) }&1,035,000% 7T

—ZE— P4 :2,408,000%70) B D BRI
HERAN - HERDHEAIURITEAL
IR o

FAREEDREEREE133,000% T
— T —PU4F : 449,000% 7T ) BV & B R A

BEAEBAMAR MR ZAEFR
Y - BB MR RIE1,790,000% 7T (=
T—F E)BREMEBER-FESIX
(BiE22) - EREREIEREEARM
FHEER R - BRER T BT

MARMZNELET S HEEEZA
WESEREBEEAEENEETE - FH
BEFTEDNEREM EZ AFHIE
BEAEERBBREANESRETER - H
REREBEAEZTEBRREEF=
9%-18%  EE R RKO%ET% & Bh I8 X
10% °

BEENXTAEEEREBERREHE
HMBRERNHEMET FEANEF
PR EGRERBAT - B RRABRE D B 25
AER - NETRSAEBUMRABHNE
ZREFAFELHE RENAEBRRE
BH At EAERERRELEEE
£ BB R ERRE —FHEERK-
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B
8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 ELEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
HE BHRER [ &t
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-NE—A—-H
Cost KA 9,051 1,723 12,089 22,863
Accumulated amortisation ZErEH - (1,021) (10,679) (11,700)
Net book amount FHFE 9,051 702 1,410 11,163
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-N
E+-A=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 9,051 702 1,410 11,163
Additions NE - 25 - 25
Amortisation charge (Notes 23) #Fz (MFE23) - (125) (1,209) (1,334)
Exchange differences ERERE (32) - - (32)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 9,019 602 201 9,822
At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+=-A=1+-H
Cost KA 9,019 1,748 12,089 22,856
Accumulated amortisation 2EEH - (1,146) (11,888) (13,034)
Net book amount RESE 9,019 602 201 9,822
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z2-1%
+-A=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 9,019 602 201 9,822
Additions NE - 151 - 151
Amortisation charge (Notes 23) BHERE (ME23) - (117) (201) (318)
Exchange differences EXER (478) - - (478)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 8,541 636 - 9,177
At 31 December 2015 RZB-EF+ZA=+-H
Cost AR 8,541 1,899 12,089 22,529
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3 - (1,263) (12,089) (13,352)
Net book amount REFE 8,541 636 - 9,177
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BRI ATBRX -
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I
8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 8 mEEE (&)
Impairment tests for goodwill: P EURE R
Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to AEDRBERNEEEES HHEEZERIIR
operating segment. BB
The PRC Vietnam
MSG business MSG business Total
PEIREEY 2 HEREER &ast
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
F=T FET FET
At 31 December 2015 RZB—aF+-A=+—H 7,811 730 8,541
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—HWF+-HA=+—H 8,289 730 9,019
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on AR B 2 W E B AT EFEA
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash BEZHIAEBET ZEHEFHERER
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by BHEZAFYREESH ZBRBATR
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond emEBAHKT BERFHIZRAESRE
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated FEARAUTH25Z B BRERE (1NE
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does A) BRIAEENHEDMBASEMMEE
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG LARBEB DB RATHERE -
business in which the CGU operates.
The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of AU EPBEREEB S ERAER 2 E
the goodwill in the PRC MSG business segment are as follows. Z/RJ|W N
The PRC
HEl
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-mF
Growth rate in sales volume HESHRE 0% - 23% 2% - 19%
Growth rate in sales price HEBIER X (18.7%) - 2.3% 3% - 12%
Gross margin EHE 23.5% — 48.7%  23.6% - 34.9%
Other operating costs per annum BEHAMKEAR
(US$'000) (F=7T) 2,930 3,402
Annual capital expenditure per annum BFEFEEARRX
(US$'000) (T 32 279
Long term growth rate RHERX 3.5% 3.5%
Discount rate PrI8 & 12% 12%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

Annual capital expenditure is the expected cash costs in
the PRC MSG business segment for adding property, plant
and equipment. This is based on the historical experience of
management in the Group. No incremental revenue or cost
savings are assumed in the value-in-use model as a result of this
expenditure.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG packaging segment,
the recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
calculations exceeds carrying value by US$1.8 million. A
decrease in annual sales volume growth rate of 3%, a decrease
in annual sales price growth rate of 2%, a decrease in gross
margin of 1%, an increase in annual operating costs of 9.5%, a
fall in long term growth rate of 1.6% or an increase in discount
rate of 1%, all changes taken in isolation, would remove the
remaining headroom.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BERME

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2015:

P B 2 F)

NI /R T~

ZHBARF:

AFE+-A=+—Hz=E

Proportion of

Proportion of  ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital the Group interest
Name EMAL/ HLBE place of operation BRT/HR FEEREC  FRREREEZ
%R UREEERER TEXBREENE RAGE EERLA EERLA
Directly held:
EERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited RERLHES EERREER 100k EREE 100% -
([ZBRRES]) 1ETERR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RERAES EERRERR 100R G REE 100% -
[Edk:ild
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s T A 2R 61,109,000% 7T ¥ & 100% -
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. MR EFMERERR 20,177,000% T £ B R 100% -
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 131,970,000 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of (Note 35)
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
%A (B RAERAR il ERBRERBERBRRBTME A 1319700008 FREE  99.9% (F3E35) 0.1%
ERRRERNISER BERS: 1ETEERR
RER EURY BBRER WIR
HRWHEEND
Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise PRC, limited liability Manufacture and sale of MSG in the PRC ~ US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Co., Ltd. company Registered capital
WRKASEEEERAA PE BREEAR ETREERBERE 17,200,000% i &K 70% 30%
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$9,800,000 100% -
company Registered capital
LERALZERAA PEARRELT EhEARRHERSE 9,800,000k 7Tz & A 100% -
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC U5$20,270,000 100% -
company Registered capital
EMEARRERAT FE ERAELT EREAEREERE 20,270,000% LM A% 100% -
Xiamen Darong Import & Export PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Trade Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EFARELOESERAR PE BREEAR ARHEEAERNIXER 254,000 TE AR 100% -
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 10
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE
FROM AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Investment in an associate (a)
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

R—EABRELFRZRE -BET—HB
BARZEMRREEN—MBEL
4 ]

R-—BBEARZRE
R—EBERRZREZZEFHMT

2015 2014

—®B-afF —E-mNF

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

As at 1 January Hn—A—H 3,393 3,490
Share of post-tax loss of an associate &1 — B4 A 7

REEER (28) (97)

As at 31 December R+tZR=+—H 3,365 3,393

R_E—RAFER-_FT—NFE+_-A
—t+—B R—EBEIRZEEMN

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31
December 2015 and 2014:

BT
Country of Particulars of % Measurement

Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method

=L HMARLER ERITRAFE BEEZ% FEFE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30 Equity

Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMBEFEZERERAR HeiHB 4,100,000% & iR E & 30 R#=E
1% 7T 2 R fn

ZHMERRIERNBERERE
R

The associate is principally engaged in real estate
development in Vietnam.

EMERZERBERABDRMLARE
BHERAD W BT 5RIE -

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.
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10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE
FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Investment in an associate (continued)
There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000
(2014: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group’s

investment in the associate.

10

R—HEBELRZRE BT M
BEAFZEMRREEN—RBREL
BIZHIA (#8)

(a)

R—BHEARNZRE (&)
REEBERZBERAZRES
2,632,000% T (=& —M4F:
2,632,000 70 ) 2 EAFEYE o

Reconciliation of summarised financial information M ERN B EYE
2015 2014
—E—-AEF —E—mF
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—B—BZEEZFHE 11,309 11,634
Loss for the year FREE (92) (325)
Net assets as at 31 December R+=—A=+—82
EEFE 11,217 11,309
Interest in an associate (30%) R—EEE R R 2w
(30%) 3,365 3,393

Short-term loan to an associate

As at 31 December 2015, there is a short-term loan to an
associate of US$120,000 (2014: nil) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and
is repayable on demand.

(b)

(c) Amount due from an associate
As at 31 December 2015, there is no amount due from
an associate (2014: US$123,000, which is unsecured,
interest free, denominated in US$ and is repayable on
demand).

(b)

(c)

BF-BBEARZEHER
R-ZE—RE+-A=+—0 %47
—fEE AT 2 RS A120,000
EL(ZE—NFE) ZNEA
EMF IR FEFRABE B AET
A WAKREREE-

Bl —MEE AR 2RE
R-E—RAE+-A=+—80 &
R —MBERARREBE(ZE—E
F:123,000E 0 ZREAEK
28 UETFE WEREX
EiE) -
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REMBERMKE
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11 EBENESZEMIA
2015 2014
—F-IF —E-0F
US$°000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
Loans and receivables BERRERKE
- Long-term loan and receivables (Note 13) — R HEIE 3 & FE WK TE
(M5E13) 165
— Trade receivables (Note 13) —FEE SRR
(Bt3E13) 25,981
— Amount due from non-controlling — R — R B A A
interest of a subsidiary FEVE R % 2 BB 933
— Amount due from a related party — W —E2EBREALT
(Note 34(d)) 2 FIA (MIFE34(d)) 1,146
— Amount due from an associate — FE U — A B A &)
(Notes 34(d)) Z I8 (Mi5E34(d)) 123
- Loan to an associate — 4T — B E QA
ZEX _
— Other receivables — current portion — B JiE W RRIE
— BV ER 9 649
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 14(a)) — R HRITIER
(HI=E14(a)) 3,463
— Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) —ZBHRE
(HfEE14(b)) 4,249
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) —BHekBRSEEY
(Ht3E14@)) 37,491
Assets as per balance sheet BEABRMTIZEE 74,200
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHK A E
ZHBAaE
— Trade payables (Note 18) —EREZER
(M5E18) 14,546
— Other payables and accruals — H i JE T B R
EEtE A 11,298
— Amounts due to related parties —ENEBEEAL
(Note 34(d)) 2 H A (MIFE34(d)) -
- Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (FIFE19) 71,553
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEEBGBRMTZERE 97,397
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L B
12 INVENTORIES 12 &8

2015 2014
—E-RE —E U4
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Consumables B 3,775 4,551
Raw materials R M 31,238 38,662
Work in progress & 3,971 9,088
Finished goods BIRK 41,053 52,474
80,037 104,775

The cost of inventories of US$216,542,000 (2014:
US$237,639,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

FERANAE216,542,000E 70 (ZZF — Y
% :237,639,000% 70) B 5T A E AN ©

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13. BRRBERERHEfERRE
2015 2014
—E—8F —E—mEF
Us$‘000 Us$'o00
SPEon FET
Trade receivables from third parties FERE=FEZESHER 30,216 27,651
Less: provision for impairment of B ENE SRR
trade receivables BE B (353) (1,670)
Trade receivables - net EWRE SRR —FEE 29,863 25,981
Prepayments TEf KA 9,100 14,337
Other receivables H b B WK IR 1,421 814
40,384 41,132
Less: non-current portion of R B FE R IE
other receivables Z FERNERER 1D (70) (165)
Current portion B S 40,314 40,967

R-ZE—RFE+-A=+—H" 2530
HEWREN EA BT EERNDE (=
T—F HR) -

As at 31 December 2015, all non-current receivables are due
within five years from the end of the year (2014: same).

AR B W E B IR E b R MR IR 2 BR
HEEE R FERE -

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the BT RIE E 2B E R MR AR
purchase of raw materials. I
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B
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13. BERSBERRAMEURIT (K)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on BB SERZEEHHERMNIEZ60
delivery to 60 days and the ageing of the trade receivables R -MEKZEZEREFREZEZAMIRERD
based on invoice date is as follows: T
2015 2014
—E—8F —E-NEF
US$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0E30K 27,124 20,611
31 - 90 days 31290k 1,920 3,469
91 - 180 days 91£180k 624 1,830
181 — 365 days 181F365K 166 52
Over 365 days 365K F 382 1,689
30,216 27,651
As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of US$25,764,000 RZE—RAF+=A=+—H" 25,764,000
(2014: US$23,229,000) were fully performing. T (ZZF—P04 : 23,229,000% 7T ) fE U
BOEREHBR -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13. BERRSEREEMEBERIE (K)

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of US$4,099,000
(2014: US$2,752,000) were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not

RZZE—HF+-_F=+—H" 4,099,000
FL(ZZT— M4 :2,752,000%7T) 2 J&E
WESERCIHERAM KRB EH
REHETUESEAVERRSE 2 BLRP
A BERBBTLR BHRIBHEER
Al B4 o 525 B B BRE I R ORE < B UK

impaired receivables is as follows: BZEERITIMT:
2015 2014
—E-5fF —E—NEF
Us$'000 US$'000
TEx FET

Overdue by i 5

0 - 90 days 0FE90k 3,423 2,452
91 — 180 days 91E 180K 585 244
Over 180 days 180K A £ 91 56
4,099 2,752

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of US$353,000
(2014: US$1,670,000) were considered impaired. The amount
of the provision made was US$353,000 as of 31 December
2015 (2014: US$1,670,000). The ageing of these receivables is
as follows:

W-—ZT—RA&E+-A=+—H" 353,000
FnX(ZF—M4:1,670,000%70) 2
BRESEFREBAERE-BHE-Z
—HAE+-_A=t+—BEHENEESEA
353,000% 0 (== — PO 4 : 1,670,0003%
TL) R B ENRE DO

2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mE
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEr FET

Overdue by 0 HA
0 - 90 days 0Z90K - -
91 - 180 days 912 180K - -
181 — 365 days 181E365K - -
Over 365 days 365K A & 353 1,670
353 1,670
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I B
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13. B EBEZEFRREMBIRIE ()
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FEUE 5 BR 51 K LM B RO 2 BR A (B 1%
denominated in the following currencies: THEEETHE -
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZT—mF
Us$'000 Us$'000
SRE T FET
Vietnam Dong e E 20,717 27,565
us$ eV 11,690 6,976
New Taiwan dollar e 523 199
Renminbi AR 6,816 6,392
Others wiil 638 -
40,384 41,132
Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade REBEZEKESEREIREREZBERT
receivables are as follows: UM
2015 2014
—E—afF —T-F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 1,670 1,736
Provision for receivables impairment FEW R IB R BB
(Note 23) (Ht7E23) 2 -
Receivables written off during the year FAEEE I BE 2
as uncollectible JIE Y B 3K (1,279) (45)
Unused amounts reversed (Note 23) EEEARAEE
(Ht7E23) (40) 21)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 353 1,670
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables B2 R B FE YRR IE B Y R B B ARG B
have been included in administrative expenses in the HEFTAGEWEEZMITERASZF (i
consolidated income statement (Note 23). Amounts charged to 23) REBFERINBNSE — RN EHE
the allowance account are generally written off when there is VAU B B % 3R 5 RN o

no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not FENE 5 R 5k K H Ath FE YR IB A 2 EAth 48
contain impaired assets. BT RIEBREEE-

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date REEB EafEERERED X E5E
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned WHERCREE ARBEWRRILITEE
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. A3 1 G /33 o
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH

(a)

(b)

14

BarnBeSRY SHRTFRR
ZRH A&

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank () HEeRBESEEYREHRTER
deposits
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and ZEAGEL P E R BR AR F
Vietnam is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by B % #5 FE AT 9 21N B I FE e o
the PRC and Vietnamese governments.
2015 2014
—E—aF —T-F
Us$‘000 US$'000
FE5x FET
Short-term bank deposits with REEBBE RBRBA=EA
original maturity over three months 2R ERIRITIF K 19,330 3,463
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 44,190 37,491
63,520 40,954
The Group's cash and cash equivalents and short- AEBEARRZHAERIREEHE
term bank deposits are denominated in the following MREHRRITERIRATEBHE
currencies:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET-F
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Vietnam Dong WA 27,847 12,077
us$ eI 27,434 19,155
Renminbi AR 7,940 9,299
Hong Kong dollar BT 97 44
New Taiwan dollar e 200 375
Others Hh 2 4
63,520 40,954
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the REREIR - NEE 2 BERF A RE
end of the reporting period were as follows. AT o
2015 2014
—B—-AfF —T—mF
Short-term bank deposits with REBE RBRB=1EA
original maturity over three months ZRHRITER 5.1% 4.3%
Restricted cash (b) FREBES

As at 31 December 2014, the restricted deposits were
denominated in Renminbi held at bank as reserve for
serving of a bank borrowing (Note 19), which was
released in 2015.

RZZFE—OF+ZA=+—H0 ¥R
BIFRAARKEERERERRE
TEEZHEMFRRIRIT (EE
19) ZERR_Z—AFHHk-
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______ B
15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 15 BEHEZHERT
The assets and liabilities related to Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd, a RAEBEEER _T—NF+=A
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, have been presented =t+—B#EmME =7 EEBEZOrsan
as disposal group held for sale following the approval of the Vietnam Co., Ltd#& - BEAAEE 2= &K &
Group's management on 31 December 2014 to sell Orsan A A]0rsan Vietnam Co., LtdZz BEN A&
Vietnam Co., Ltd in Vietnam to a third party. The transaction CEBEFEZHEMARZS - BAXS
was completed in March 2015. ERZZE—RAF=ARMK-
(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale (a) PEABFEHEZHEARZEE
2014
—T-F
US$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) M- BB REE (7)) 42
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 313
Trade and other receivables FE W& 5 B 3k K L FE W R IR 1,571
1,926
(b) The following table summarises the consideration (b) THREARBFELEZEEHERR
received for the disposal of assets held for sale and ERERAREEBFMEEEERE
the amounts of assets and liabilities disposed on the BzeE:

disposal date:

2015
—ZE-HF
US$°000
FET
Consideration RME 2,386
Net asset value disposed of HEZEEFE (1,926)
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale FIEHE 2 EAELE 2 e (H5E22)
(Note 22) 460
Assets and liabilities disposed: HECEERAE:
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 1,811
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 38
Other receivables H b fE W 5K IR 77
Net asset value BEEFE 1,926
Proceeds from disposal of assets BEREZEELEMBRERRE:
held for sale comprise:
Cash consideration received FrisRerE 2,386
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REVBERME
B
16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 BE=Xx
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBR
Par value Number
uss of shares Us$’000
HE
EH K% & B FEx
At 1 January 2014, RZZT—ME—A—8/"
31 December 2014 and —E-mNE+ZA=+—H
31 December 2015 R_Z—h%F
+=—A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTRAZEER
Par value Number of
uss shares US$’000
H{E
E R4 8B FER
At 1 January 2014, RZZT—ME—A—8/"
31 December 2014 and —E-NE+=ZA=1+—H
31 December 2015 MZFE—RHF
+-—A=+—8 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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T
17 RESERVES 17 s
Share Exchange Merger Retained
Premium Reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note)
ROEE B A AHEE REEFH okl
(&)
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET TER FTEn TER FEL
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mFE—HA—H 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 256,677
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - (2,434) (2,434)
Other comprehensive loss Htt2EER
Currency translation differences & % =% - (281) - - (281)
Total comprehensive loss 2HERLAE - (281) - (2,434) (2,715)
Total transaction with owners BEEFAZBRZE
Changes in ownership interests in I B HRH| EEE) 2
a subsidiary without change of ~ MIBARIEE AEZZE
control (Note 35) (PHFE35) - (61) - - (61)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mNFE+=ZA=+—A 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 253,901
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RFE—HF—H 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 253,901
Comprehensive income L ON
Profit for the year REREF - - - 12,095 12,095
Other comprehensive income ~ E#Z2EKA
Currency translation differences & % =% - (2,936) - - (2,936)
Total comprehensive income ~ ZEKALAE - (2,936) - 12,095 9,159
Total transactions with owners ERFAZBRZE
Dividends paid (Note 26) BARS (Fi26) - - - (2,670) (2,670)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+ZA=+—A 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 260,390
Note: M5
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between AEENEHFEEERBER _ZEZT_F+-H
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the ZHANBEROHEEEAMMENB QAR
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed ANTEE R IR 5 8 BN A B BEEfT MR M B AT
on 26 December 2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of the ZIRAEERZERE-

Company issued in exchange therefor.
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18 EMNRHERRHfEFTRIRF

2015 2014

—E-fHEF —E -

Us$’000 Us$'000

F Xt FE

Trade payables FET B SR 10,686 14,546
Accruals FEEtE A 6,656 5,065
Payable of construction costs JE A B SRR AN FRIR 420 10,321
Other payables b FE T FRIR 6,472 2,945
24,234 32,877

Other payables mainly represents receipt in advance from

customers and payables to other supplies.

At 31 December 2015, the ageing of trade payables based on

invoice date is as follows:

HMEMNRBEIEET P 2R RENEMD

HERERIA -

R-ZT—HF+-_A=+—H ENES

ERREZAHZREITOT

2015 2014

—E-1F —Z—mF

US$°000 Us$'000

FTERx FET

0 — 30 days 0230k 7,872 13,738
31 - 90 days 31290k 2,654 685
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 31 59
181 — 365 days 181E365K 29 27
Over 365 days 365K 30 37
10,686 14,546

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables

are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBZENE SRR LEMBENKERZ

FREER T E%EE:

2015 2014

—E-REF —ZF—OF

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam Dong M A 12,045 18,246
us$ ETT 8,074 10,278
New Taiwan Dollar A 810 893
Renminbi AR 2,929 3,460
Others HAh 376 -
24,234 32,877
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REMBERMKE
T
19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 SRITHESE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET-mF
US$°000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
Non-current JEEN A
Bank borrowings wITEE
— secured —BHEH 30,100
— unsecured — AR 5,000
Less: current portion of long-term bank & : SRITRHAE 2
borrowings BIHAEL 5 (2,404)
32,696
Current BN &3
Bank borrowings RITIEE
- secured —BHEH 25,977
— unsecured — AR 10,476
— current portion of long-term bank —RITRAAME TR 2 BN ER
borrowings s 2,404
38,857
Total bank borrowings RITEEREE 71,553
At 31 December 2015, the Group's bank borrowings were RZZE—RE+_A=+—H0 F&&EEHZ
repayable as follows: IRITIEE AR AT HAREE
2015 2014
—2-5F —E-ps
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Within 1 year —FR 38,857
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 8,633
Between 2 and 5 years WEZERF 20,587
Over 5 years BEFMNUE 3,476
71,553
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19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

19

|ITHEE (])

RB|EMR AEEBEHES O F XRE
PREWEMIEARET:

2015 2014

—E—8F —E-NE

Us$’000 Us$'000

FET FET

Within 6 months 618 A A 30,196 58,453
Between 7 and 12 months 7E212M8 A 2,371 4,000
Between 1 and 5 years 18254 18,159 9,100
Over 5 years SEM 1,000 -
51,726 71,553

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

AEEREEREAFERS-

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's REERAR AEBEEEZEREFMNEN
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: D
2015 2014
—E-AfF —T—MF
us$ eV 2.0% 1.9%
New Taiwan dollar ek 2.0% 2.2%
RMB AR 3.3% -
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19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

19

MITHEE (W)
AEBEREZREERATESE:

2015 2014

—ZE—8F —ZE—OF

US$'000 US$'000

FTEx FET

us$ =T 50,901 69,977
New Taiwan dollar Ak 756 1,576
RMB AR 69 -
51,726 71,553

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

AEBHEATRREREERE

2015 2014
—®B-hfF —T-HF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Floating rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—F NI H 26,018 69,543
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F &5 H 18,000 -
Fixed rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—F RN 68,358 29,849
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 2 5 8,387 1,900
120,763 101,292

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$172,489,000 (2014:
US$172,845,000) for bank borrowings. Unutilised amount
as at 31 December 2015 amounted to US$120,763,000
(US$101,292,000).

The Group's bank borrowings of US$38,188,000 as at 31
December 2015 were secured by corporate guarantees.
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R-ZET—AF+-_A=+—8 K&£H
AHBE AEHL172,489,000E T Z R
TREE (ZZ — M4 :172,845,0003%
TEBRITER-R_TE—RAFE+_-A
=+—H KB £%AE120,763,000E T
(101,292,000 7T) ©
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B T
19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 19 SRITHE (1)
The Group's bank borrowings of US$56,077,000 as at 31 AEBR-_Z—NF+-_A=+—HZA
December 2014 were secured by corporate guarantees, legal #56,077,000E T 2 $RITE R T A B &
charges over the Group's property, plant and equipment with R ANEEBREFE A E497,557,000% 7T
net book amount of approximately US$7,557,000 and the ZYE - BERREBZETERURAHY
Group's restricted cash of approximately US$4,249,000. #94,249,000% T 2 AL B R [R$I13R £ 1F
R o
20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 RIEFTER
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RSB IDRBEAEEARNEERLEM
differences under the liability method using the principal tax FERERNEEREFME TR EET
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BLEMSHEEREBBEZONHET
follows:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET-mF
Us$’000 Us$'000
F £t FET
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTISTHAE -
- Deferred income tax assets to be —BR121E A Bl = 2
recovered after more than 12 months RSB EE - -
Deferred income tax liabilities: BELEASHaRE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — KR 12E A Bk E 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMEHAE 4,178 4,772
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEMGBHAESSE 4,178 4,772
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as REPMSTHER S S BB T
follows:
2015 2014
—E-AF —Z—mF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 4,772 5,357
Income statement credit (Note 25) P AN EF (HH5E25) (594) (585)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H” 4,178 4,772
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

EFEFRSI (8)
REFRLEMEHREERBE (R RE
58 AR R B RUARE R B 45 80 AT) M 2 Bh 1
T

ELEFMEHAE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEFHEITE
2015 2014
—E—&fF —E-mEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January w—HA—H 5,575 6,144
Credited to income statement AR (676) (569)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H” 4,899 5,575
Deferred income tax assets ELEFEHEE
Other temporary differences
HithBRMEER
2015 2014
—E-&fF —E—-mEF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Rn—AH—H (803) (787)
Charged/(credited) to income statement WMk (GEA)rE xR 82 (16)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H” (721) (803)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$764,000 (2014: US$828,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
US$10,992,000 (2014: US$11,782,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.
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RATRER A RS RE R MY Bl S Y
B 2= FAHE R IR AT FT 15 B & & 764,000 7T
(—Z— P4 :828,000FE7T) °

BEEMEREEDNABHREEATSE
BARERR ENEHSRMEED
MEBBRELER AEEARERR
% E51810,992,000% 0 (= ZF — M F:
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21

22

REVENUE

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenues recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were
US$327,821,000 and US$325,627,000 respectively.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET

21 k&

AE SR E MR GRNE
CERRAERNILER BERK

15 #R4T - B R 8K

BeHEZT—AFE-_FT—HNF+=

A=+—RIEFE

Rz Wm DB &

327,821,000 7t }2325,627,0003 7T ©

22 Hfti(BR) W2 -F8

2015 2014

—E—EF —T-F

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Net exchange loss b M 18 F 58 (1,155) (184)

Loss on disposal of property, HEDE BER

plant and equipment B ok (474) (314)
Impairment of property, W BB RERERE

plant and equipment (1,790) -

Sales of scrap materials EERHEE 608 813
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale HERIEHEEEZ m

(Note 15) (FfE15) 460 -

Others HAh 565 555

(1,786) 870
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mEMBERKE

I
23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BHEESBEZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HERK HERDHAI RITHAZE
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZAZSWHAT:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —T-mF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Changes in inventories and FERERERERE
consumables used (Note 12) (FE12) 216,542 237,639
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) & E#$4 ([)E8) 318 1,334
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T feF AR 5 (B )x6) 66 66
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B &
- Audit services —ZH R 305 340
— Non-audit services — I BUR T 30 220
Depreciation on property, M HWERRETE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (H$xE7) 20,758 20,175
Operating leases expenses S EEHN
in respect of leasehold land =53 326 325
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EEEAFXZ (KF28) 31,364 29,135
Reversal of provision for impairment of FEWE 5 BR FOR B B [
trade receivables (Note 13) (H£13) (38) (21)
Technical support fee (Note 34) it & & (H¥34) 2,216 2,267
Other expenses E R 37,905 36,149
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution S5 &M A - $4E& K& 84
expenses and administrative expenses s RITHFAZ 25 309,792 327,629

24

Other expenses mainly represent travelling and transportation,
repair and maintenance, advertising and other miscellaneous

HMERETFREEREB BERRE
ER EEREMMER-

expenses.
FINANCE COSTS - NET 24 BB -3
2015 2014
—E-5F —E-NEF
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Finance income B B A 799 643
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENBEMAX (1,269) (1,359)
Less: amounts capitalised BEBEEEARNLRIE
on qualifying assets (Note 7) (H$%7) 133 449
Finance costs B B sz i (1,136) (910)
Finance costs — net RS- 55 (337) (267)
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I
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25 FifsRAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated St M B9 B T8 Bt A A EH B SR B s R R AN &
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing EEEMTEBRR CERANEGE -
in the countries in which the Group operates.
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income REEE W SR NIR 2 PREHEE -
statement represents:
2015 2014
—E-aF —T-F
Us$’000 US$'000
FE5x FET
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") ERER 4,633 2,054
Under/(over)-provision of income tax BEFEMSHBERR
in previous years / (REER ) 9 (37)
Total current tax BVHAR 1B 4 2 4,642 2,017
Deferred income tax (Note 20) RIEFTIS T (ME)E20) (594) (585)
4,048 1,432

The income tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

NEBARFAMBRAEFR (B AT
BREMERBANEBFTEWE LA BE
KARBERREMTENERRATR
AT -

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ET-mF
us$‘000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR A (EE) 15,878 (1,496)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% X ANMFE K15%:1 2 2
(2014: 15%) BB (T —mF:
15% ) 2,382 (224)
Tax effects of different tax rates TEBE BT 894 822
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes APz A 431 569
Income not subject to tax HARB A (114) (51)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A A ARG RS
tax losses - (23)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years RBEFETR, (HB%58)
i 9 (37)
Tax losses arising for which no deferred FrEE HE 1B N0 R R SRR AT PR
income tax asset was recognised BREEZMBEER 446 376
Tax charge BIES 4,048 1,432
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I -
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25 FiBREAX (#|)
EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial EMSHIRNE R EERMETE -
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items BRATE BB AR S AT R MU
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. BRELHFAE.
(i) Vietnam (i) M
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in R B A BRI ERTAIEPTETER - K
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered SEHTCUMOEBNERCEMS
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the TR 7315% A 52 5 BUN AT
subsidiary’s investment license. ETHEBRHE.
(i) The PRC (i) FE
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the AREEREFENEHNBERACER
PRC is 25%. BB E/25% °
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong (i) FmgE,EB
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as FR 7S £5 3] B 7N £F 2 I B A R A0 3
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or KBS Rk S (AT FE R TR B -
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year. b 3P 4 1E S FT N BB RIS R
B o
(iv) Taiwan (iv) &%
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in AEBTAEMEBOBERB IR
Taiwan is 17%. SHERBIT% -
26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
The interim dividend paid in 2015 was US$2,670,000 (0.175 RZE—RAFINHFRHERE A
US cents per share) (2014:nil). A final dividend in respect of 2,670,000 T (B %0.175%1L) (==
the year ended 31 December 2015 of 0.301 US cents per —OF:E) RZT—AFRAZTIEH
share, amounting to a total dividend of US$4,580,000, is to BITHREEAFALS LBRENHE-Z
be proposed at the annual general meeting on 24 May 2016. —hAETZA=T—BILEFENRGERE
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this 7B IR0.3013E Ml - f% B 42 %8 4,580,000
dividend payable. FTT o % FhR A BTG AR 0 M R MR R FE T
MRS -
2015 2014
—E—aF —T-F
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEr FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.175 SR HA RS B AR
US cents (2014: US$nil) EimAR0.175% 1l
per ordinary share (ZE—F &) 2,670 -
Proposed final dividend of 0.301 BORARHR B E R
US cents (2014: US$nil) L iBmA%0.3013E AL
per ordinary share (ZE—HF &) 4,580 -
7,250 -
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B
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SERET
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing BREARRT, (EE)RANA B H#
the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by BARIERER, (BB BRUFARE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BITEBBRNMEFLHBGTIE -
during the year.
2015 2014
—2-afF —E-NF
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners KRAREB ARMEF
of the Company (US$'000) (E18E) (F=xm1) 12,095 (2,434)
Weighted average number of ordinary = %77 & i A% i F 19 &
shares in issue (thousands) (AFED) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARN (BB, &BF
(US cents per share) (FRRZEA) 0.79 (0.16)
(b) Diluted (b) #H
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is same as basic earnings/ BE_T-HFR-FMOFt=
(loss) per share as there are no dilutive instruments for R=+—BIFE BRITE#EsT
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. B SR&#FRFN(FE)EGR
EAXRRF (FE) R -
28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 28 EABHMAX(AEBEEEFH)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)
2015 2014
—E-0fF T
Us$‘000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE& K& &EM 25,300 24,096
Directors’ bonus BRI 1,359 -
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R & A
— R KRG E 2,523 2,556
Other employee benefits Hb{E BRI 2,182 2,483
31,364 29,135
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29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day.

29

BHBRARE

REBEEBHSHEERTE AEEBAN_F
ENF+ZA=T—HIURZERNY
MEBRHEHEEMNERASTE - ZFR
BARER _ZFENF+_A=+—HZ
AR 7% 8 iR 12 AR 7% B B AT 7S A B A
T AFEL -

2015 2014

—E-&fF —E—-NEF

Us$’000 us$'000

SREZTm FET

As at 1 January m—HA—H 1,214 1,169
Current service cost BNEARR 765 5 2 92 208
Payments 3% (76) (163)
As at 31 December nt+-—_B=+—H 1,230 1,214

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

PrERMEERERRLET

2015 2014

—ET—AF —T-F

Discount rate PrI8 = 9% 9%
Salary growth rate ITERRXK 3.0% - 7.9% 3.0% -7.9%
Expected years of service remaining TEHRFIARBFER 14 -19 years 15-20 years

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EERMRES (FEAFGH (5

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF

622% ) 553838 AT (HBEEF

THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE 2FH) B ($622GE)REFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF TRAUREESE)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EELEHRETEENTN

The remuneration of every director and the chief

executive is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

T~

FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

REARE (FRRARAARLIHELR) EERHC R ARYHN

ZEERRAERENFHME

BE-ZE-HEF+-A=+—-HL

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paid or management of
Estimated Employer's receivable  the affairs of
money value of contributionto in respect of the company or
Discretionary Housing  other benefits  a retirement accepting office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note a) benefit scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
RESRALE
EVCELGH |
EiEAS AEXES  LEBEN
EHEREE BEORAER BB EHEBEH
Name of Director j £3:84 e #&  BEREEA EERE (Wia) HEFEER  SEGHEE  SEUEH EE
US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
TR TiR FER TR iR TER TR TR iR
Executive Director HOES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRERE 1 280 403 - 13 - - - 697
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 200 - - 17 - - - 12
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note b) #3224 (Hizh) - 305 39 - 3 - - - 70
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 82 - 13 - - - 445
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou HEMEE - 150 282 - 13 - - - 445
Non-executive Director FU7ES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABREE - - - - 12 - - - 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BERRE 1 - - - 12 - - - 13
Independent non-executive BIKHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERRE 2 - - - 12 - - - 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BEBAE 2 - - - 1n - - - 1%
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa ArEit 1 - - - 2 - - - 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen EELE 2 - - - 12 - - - 14
Total EEl 9 1,085 1,359 - 136 - - - 2,589
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated):

Certain of the comparative information of directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2014
previously disclosed in accordance with the predecessor
Companies Ordinance have been restated in order to
comply with the new scope and requirements by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

EEHEARER (FRAFGH (5
622 ) $383H ' 1F (HBEEH
REH)RG (F622GE)RFEL
TRABEHE) (&)

(A)

ESRERERENTFH (F)

BHE_T-—NF+_A=+—HIt
FE(E)

REBTEBRREN (F6225) 5
RIMEE KRBT SARERN A A
GO ENEE—_Z—NF+=A
=t BNEEHFWE FLRER
BE{TE-

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

SEA (BRRALAAARANBLR) EERBDHARBREH

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paid or - management of
Estimated Employer's receivable  the affairs of
money value of  contribution to in respect of  the company or
Discretionary Housing  other benefits a retirement  accepting office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (Note a) ~ benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HEREM
ERAQNAL
il
HftfERm HEXEF REFHH
HEREE BEImENET EHER  EHBHER
Name of Director j £3:22 e ¥¢  BREIREL FERE (Mita)  FEFERR SEREM RN EE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET i Fr TEL RE i TEL TEL ke
Executive Director HOES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEELE 1 280 - - 13 - - - 294
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEfE - 200 - - 13 - - - 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note b)  #3# % & (F3tb) - 305 15 - 13 - - - 333
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRUGE - 150 - - 13 - - - 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou s - 150 - - 13 - - - 163
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABERE - - - - 17 - - - 1
M. Huang, Ching-Jung ERRRE 1 - - - 12 - - - 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - - 12 - - - 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray Bkt 2 - - - 12 - - - 14
M. Hsieh, Lung-Fa Bl £33 1 - - - 12 - - - 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen MfEERE 2 - - - 12 - - - 14
Total At 9 1,085 15 - 137 - - - 1,46
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A)

(B)

(@)

(D)

(E)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

Note:
(@) Other benefits include travelling allowance.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate
disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2014: same).

Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2015, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2014: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2014: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2014: same).

30 EFRIRES (FRAFGH (%
622% ) 553838 AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (B622GE)RFEL
TRABEHE) (&)

(A)

(B)

@

(D)

(E)

EERaREEENHH (&)

MAE
(a) EMENSEERELN-

(b) EBEEREARRITHRAR WEH
TRAENTMETHRKE-

EEENKRER
REBEE-_ZE—RAF+_A=+—8
IEFEHE VERNEERESEE
/N NN G D=RNEI O 8 92
EENBEIHRAEN (Z2—H0
FABR) °

KIEEEREER
REBEE-Z—RAF+=-_A=+—8H
IEFEEIR . WERE B AR IER
BEZ(ZE—WF HR) -

BRREHESREMAE=TREHN
RE-
RBEE-_Z-—RF+-_A=+—H
LIFFEHRE WEARERESREM
AE=DRUAE (ZF—0F:
@) e

FRUESE ZZREESEMEA
BEERZESEESNAREERAR
HANER EEFREGBXENE
®
REZE-Z-—HEF+-A=+—H
LFEHE YEBAEE IZEL
FRHNEABEBERZTEENE
RMEERBFHNERREERRFE
BANEMRZ S (ZF M
[) e
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2014: same).

(G) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included five (2014: five)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.

(H) There are no outstanding share options as at 31
December 2015 and 2014.

() Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

30 EFRIRES (FRLFGH (%
622% ) E383Hi ' AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (F622GE)RFEL
TRABEHE) (&)

(F) EBERRZ RFERSHTHNERE
s
RAFESIAFEAEMER AR
A BT EARBEERERMmA
NRAEFERNFMEAFTEAER
MEMBEARS RHHAH (ZF
—mEFHER)

G) AEFEAFEALLEHFMAL
BRERAA(ZE—NF:BHE)HT
BEF REOMEER X220
[ Bk o

H RZZE—RFE-ZT—NF+=A
=+ —HEERE N RITE

() SREEEMNSEHE
MaNFRIATEE :

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
—E-FfF —Eomg
Emolument bands (in US$) e#E (EmT)
UsS$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 7t-105,000% 7T 4 5
US$105,001 - US$130,000 105,001 75-130,0003% 7T 7 5
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T
31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 ¥EBEEZR S
2015 2014
—B-IfF —T—mF
US$°000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSH AR (&
#B) (1,496)
Adjustments for: A TIEE A
- Finance costs — net (Note 24) — B FEE
(K3E24) 267
— Share of post tax loss of an associate —EE— B E AR
(Note 10) iz EE
(KF3E10) 97
— Depreciation of property, plant and W% -BE X
equipment (Note 7) JAEITE (MIEE7) 20,175
— Reversal of provision for impairment of —EWE SRR ER
trade receivables (Note 13) [,
(Ft3E13) 21)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EEEH
(Note 8) (Hf3E8) 1,334
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)  — == {5 F 42 % §
(KizEe) 66
— Impairment of property, plant and ¥ WER&E
equipment (Note 7) A (MEE7) -
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEME WERR
equipment (see below) #HZER
(BT 314
— Gain on disposal of assets held for sale ——HEREEE
(Note 22) FEMBEAE 2 W
(HtsE22) -
20,736
Change in working capital LEAEY
(excluding the effects of (KT EREEEAZ
exchange differences on consolidation) EHEZBEE)
— Inventories -FE 10,427
— Trade receivables, prepayments and KRB ZER-
other receivables TE T FIE R
H th i U 3R TE 2,636
— Trade payables, accruals and other —ERESER-
payables EEER K
H b N 3R 3,363
- Net changes in balances with related —WMERERAIKRIEAYZ
companies #H)FE (1,070)
Cash generated from operations ¥BEECZRS 36,092
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31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31 EBEEZHRE ()
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale it HenERN LEWE BEK
of property, plant and equipment comprise: BB PEFIERAT
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z—mF
US$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFE (MFE7) 497 326
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERZEZ
equipment (Note 22) &8 (M5E22) (474) (314)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME BMEREREZ

and equipment Fri3501A 23 12
32 COMMITMENTS 32 &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE

The Group’s capital expenditure contracted for at the end
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

AEBRBRERRCITOEREE
ZEAZHWT:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—NEF
Us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Contracted but not provided for ERTHERBEEDE -
Property, plant and equipment = & & 1,087 3,408
Investment in an associate (Note) R—EBERRZRE
(H5E) 2,632 2,632
3,719 6,040
Note: P 5
Details of investment in an associate are disclosed in Note 10. R—EEBE AR ZIREAF BRI 108
?g °
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32

33

34

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-

32 KiE(#E)
(b) RERNRIE
AEERBETTHECERO T
WRIEFERARINNREHAE

cancellable operating leases as follows: FIRMEERT
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—-NEF
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
No later than one year —FR 518 528

Later than one year and no later than —F&EBRHFR
five years 1,218 1,597
Later than five years hFi% 2,442 2,557
4,178 4,682
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 RARAR

At 31 December 2015, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$122,849,945
(2014: US$92,500,000), of which US$84,662,646 (2014:
US$51,235,000) has not been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Company as at 31
December 2015:

Related party
BREAL

RZE—RAF+=_A=+—H &A2QF
BB A R122,849,945% 5L (—Z — Y
£ :92,500,000% 7T) 2 RITEERMEE
1R H 84,662,646k 7T ( — T — U4 :
51,235,000% 70 ) (M AR B A ©

3 AREALES
AEBEERERT /BRI EKEER
FIHBRMEE BHERE BKERE B
HEEL HEMNEL  BKERE  BR
NEE -BXREE BRELE BXBR
T BRELZ T RIBRIBL L

(@ TRBAR_Z-—RFT=A
=t -RZBEBEEALRERAR
RIMBARIEE

Relationship with the Company
ERZS 4 B B B AR

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan")
KACERGERAT ([REKT])
Dacin International Holdings Ltd.
EMEERZERAER A A

Capron Group Limited

Capron Group Limited

A substantial shareholder of the Company

KA EERR

An associate of the Company

ZANYN): /N

A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—MmHRRERARES 2 QA
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B
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BHEALTZS ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) CEAREEBEEBHRETHNEKRE
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as FEATIAT
follows:
2015 2014
—2-IfF —Z—mF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FEn FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan magrRiEEEm (i) 6,729 2,678
Technological support fee paid to  [A] & /&K fF 3 4 17
Taiwan Vedan XERE (ii) 2,216 2,267
Agency commission income A B EIR ST U B R
received from Taiwan Vedan (R ON (i) 5 16
Sale of 0.1% of shareholding of M Capron Group
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Limited ! & Vedan
Corporation Limited to Capron (Vietnam) Enterprise
Group Limited Corporation Limited
20.1%M% 1 (iii) - 155

Notes: B3

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RAREERR MABEATE
the related parties were conducted in the normal course of HZHERTEREEBRET
business.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) ARAREFERA ZEXRZHEAF
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BT WERBARBERL
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the TR B o
terms of underlying agreements.

(i) Details of the related party transaction are disclosed in (i) BHEEALXRZZHFBRHEIEIS

Note 35. Wz
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors and senior management,
for employee services is shown below.

3 AREALES (&)

() FEEEBEAEME
REERBENAENEZEEA
B(BEMERTEERERER
&) 2 #rEfE s o

2015 2014
—E-EF —T-F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other short-term Tk EMEHES R
employee benefits 3,983 2,252

Year-end balances with the related parties
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had the following
significant balances with the related parties:

(d) EEREALZERER
RZTE-—AF+=ZA=+—H &K
EERBFEALZTEHEBRMOT:

2015 2014
—Z-HF —E—-NEF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FE FET
Current: RNER :
Amount due (to)/from (FERD) /IR & TR
Taiwan Vedan F;2Z 38 (i) (934) 1,146
Short term loan to an associate el A1) - h /N g
BEER (i) 120 -
Amount due from an associate el —MEEE AT 2
RIE (iii) - 123
Amount due to Capron Group Ji& <t Capron Group
Limited Limited 2 ;18 (iv) (12) -
Notes: B3

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(i) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears
interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and is
repayable on demand.

(i)~ As at 31 December 2015, there is no amount due from an
associate (2014: US$123,000, which is unsecured, interest
free, denominated in US$ and is repayable on demand).

(iv)  The balance with Capron Group Limited is unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.

(i) AERMNNMEERGREERT 28
RSB [E E B 5K o

iy BT HBERRAZEHERREL
REFENRAEF B AETEHE A
ARRBERER -

(i) R=ZFT-—AF+-_RA=+—H L&
EY —EBERBFIE(ZE—mE:
123,000%7T) - ARIFKIAREER 2
B AETEHE WAREREE-

(iv) Capron Group LimitedZ & & A& K

BB UERTHHE XARKRENRE
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 35

INTERESTS

On 25 July 2014, the Group disposed of a 0.1% equity
interest in Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
to Capron Group Limited, a related party, at a consideration
of US$155,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on
the date of disposal was US$216,000. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of US$216,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the company of
US$61,000. The effect of changes in the ownership interest of
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on the equity
attributable to owners of the company for the year ended 31

December 2014 is summarised as follows:

HIRREQETZIRS

W-ZE—NE+A-+HB KNEEI
155,000 ;L R {E M A @& A T Capron
Group Limited{ti €Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation LimitedZ0.1%
XN HEHBH Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation Limited 2 3F{ A%
AR A A216,000E 7T o AN & B #E R IE
RS 2R 1S 01216,000F L R AR R HEE
A FEAG #2505 61,0003 7T © B B Vedan
(Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
BEEANEREHHBE_T—NF+-A
=t+—BIFEXRRFEEAELER

HEWT
As at
31 December
2014
R-Z—F
+=—A=+-—8
Us$'000
FET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests P & FF I i 28 BRTENE
disposed of (216)
Consideration receivable from non-controlling M) FEFE IR A 25 IR 2 FE U R (B
interests 155
Loss on disposal within equity ARz HEEE (61)
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36

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FAFIREARRREMED

ARREEEER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MEF
Note uUss$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FETT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets mEE - 201
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZEE 3,788 3,788
Loan to subsidiaries BTHBRARIZER 2,200 7,218
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 172,018 177,237
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UGBS /B A Bl 3R IR 49,385 38,738
Short-term loan to an associate LT —EBE AR EH
= 120 -
Amount due from an associate JE W — B &8 A B SRR - 123
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < 518 & H Ath FE U IR 1,052 1,702
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 1,940 2,059
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 5,395 909
Total current assets REBEEHE 57,892 43,531
Total assets EEHAE 229,910 220,768
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners of RARER AEIH#ER
the Company
Share capital % < 15,228 15,228
Reserves G (a) 206,121 195,023
Total equity B 221,349 210,251
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B
36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36 ENFEERARERRFEREH ()
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) KAEEERER (&)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—~H
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mEF
Note US$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 A & E Ath FEA 3R 2,532 1,241
Bank borrowings HRITEE 5,756 9,276
Amount due to a related party JEfT— & @ AL RIA 273 -
Total current liabilities FEBEEARE 8,561 10,517
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 229,910 220,768
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARREEABREEEZTEN _E—X
of Directors on 29 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf. FZAZTNEAERIAHTIALRESE
=,
YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
SRR % 1
Director Director
EZE EE
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

FAFIREARKREMSE ()

FAREERRE (K)
WiEa) AD AR

Share Exchange Retained

premium reserve earnings Total

IR 175 8 ER&HE REER “xE

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$’'000 Us$'000

FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NFE—HA—H 194,098 74 6,865 201,037

Comprehensive loss 2HEE

Loss for the year REEFE - - (5,901) (5,901)
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 EEE

Currency translation difference fEN =% - (113) - (113)

Total comprehensive loss 2HEBREE - (113) (5,901) (6,014)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—mEF

+=—A=+—8 194,098 (39) 964 195,023

At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—HA—H 194,098 (39) 964 195,023

Comprehensive income ZEBA

Profit for the year REE - - 13,880 13,880
Other comprehensive loss Ht2HER

Currency translation difference fEH =% - (112) - (112)

Total comprehensive income Z2HEHWR AL - (112) 13,880 13,768

Dividends paid B RIS - - (2,670) (2,670)
At 31 December 2015 WZZ—0%F

+=—A=+—H 194,098 (151) 12,174 206,121
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+-A=+—HLEFEGRAEER

DECEMBER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HE —T--MNFE —T-—=F —T——-F —T——4%F
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
Revenue Uy #& 327,821 325,627 342,453 372,922 382,900
Profit/(loss) before B PT1S F4 Al
income tax mA (EE) 15,878 (1,496) 2,522 9,964 11,021
Income tax expense FriS i X (4,048) (1,432) (1,794) (3,413) (5,084)
Profit/(loss) attributable A2 &
to owners of wa A
the Company FEAE =
(E58) 12,095 (2,434) 1,488 7,342 7,902
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-BA=+—HHBEEERAER
DECEMBER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-—RHE —ZET-NFE —ZT-—=HF Z—T——-F "—E——F
uUs$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Total assets AEHE 356,629 378,440 352,670 353,729 361,367
Total liabilities BERTE (83,179) (111,341) (82,513) (82,329) (89,746)
Total equity A 273,450 267,099 270,157 271,400 271,621
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing : Main Board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Stock Code

HKEX : 02317

Access to Bloomberg 2317 HK Equity

Access to Reuters : 2317.HK
Board Lot : 4,000
Par Value : Us$0.01
Trading Currency : HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended 31 December, 2015
Full year results announced 29 March, 2016
Annual general meeting 24 May, 2016
Interim results to be announced In the last week of

August, 2016*
* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

B

Nsg:cl L BEBRATER
B& 17 55
B 22 BT S 02317
ZIBhRE © 2317 HK Equity
BEARE ¢ 2317.HK
BEEHM © 4,000
HE © 0.01ETT
RHEM BT
BBETEE
E2FEREFE —E-RE+-A=+—8H
EEEENM —E-RE=A=-t+hH
BEAFAE TE-RERA-+WAE
FHIEE N —ZE-XRENA

& — (A2
* BERETE
B% Bk ¥

EABEBERNEFRERZER  FHEALRE
ZEEBRNBEERNE

HEEERERAT
E55
ERRNEBR183%
AR N221E

E&E 0 (852) 2980 1768
{8& : (852) 2528 3158

BAARBIRND Z AL BRHC0H FHRE
MEBEMBPELD R -
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REERR

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
a total of 24 one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with major
international institutional investors including Macquarie Securities,
BNP Paribas Securities, Deutsche Bank and DBS Vickers, among
others, employing all the different important channels to nurture
good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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